
 

BOARD’S REPORT 

To, 
The Members, 
E24 Glamour Limited 
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 14th Annual Report on the business and 
operations of the Company together with Audited Financial Statements for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2021. 
 
FINANCIAL RESULTS 
 
The Company’s financial performances for the year under review along with previous year’s 
figures are given hereunder: 
                                  (Rupees in Lakhs)  

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20 
Total Income 2,103.33 2,321.56 
Profit before Depreciation & Financial Charges  (214.53) 135.13 
Financial Charges 270.86 327.31 
Depreciation 47.71 62.30 
Profit before Tax (533.10) (254.49) 
Provision for Tax 5.93 8.67 
Profit after Tax (539.04) (263.16) 
Proposed Dividend Nil Nil 

 
During the financial year under review, total income from operations was Rs. 2,061.46 lakhs 
against Rs. 2,241.69 lakhs during the previous financial year. The loss after tax was Rs. 
539.04 Lakhs against the loss of Rs. 263.16 lakhs during the previous financial year. 
 
OPERATIONS AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 

Your Company is running ‘E24’ a 24 hours Entertainment channel. E24 managed to attract 
audiences of all age groups and succeeded in creating a new genre in television 
entertainment. The channel had not only successfully been able to entertain its audience but 
had also been educating the youth by sending important messages and uplifting the lifestyle 
up-to the global standard at same time not forgetting its culture and traditions.  

E24 helps building deep rooted connection of people from Indian - subcontinent to their 
homeland. E24 is available throughout Hindi speaking market (HSM) on cable and on DTH 
platforms such as Airtel & Tata Sky. E24, is also available throughout West Asia and the 
MENA Region on DU network across Middle East and North Africa including Algeira, Baharin, 
Chad, Djibouti, Egypt, Iraq, Iran, Jorda, Kuwait, Lebnan, Libya, Mauritania, Morocco, Oman, 
Qatar, Saudia Arabia, Somalia, North Sudan, Syria, Tunisia, U.A.E. & Yemen. 

ORGANISATIONAL INITIATIVES IN RESPONSE TO COVID-19 SITUATION 

The outbreak of deadly COVID-19 virus and the ensuing lockdowns and restrictions imposed 
across the country affected operations across our various businesses. Our business 
continuity plan was put in motion and was tested during this period. The initial focus was to 
ensure safety of our employees and on minimizing disruption to services for all our viewers 
globally. 

The COVID - 19 pandemic has changed the social lives of people across regions and 
economic sections. The lockdowns and restriction on movement of people has not only led 



to an increased demand for content but has also changed content consumption patterns. 
While traditional and outdoor mediums of distribution of content, such as cinema theatres, 
continue to be unavailable; the home consumption mediums, such as television channels 
and OTT platforms have gained even more popularity and viewership. However, despite the 
rise in viewership, monetization and revenues are hugely impacted, considering reduction in 
ad-spends by other industries owing to the global recession. 

India is experienced a massive second wave of Covid-19 infections with partial lockdowns 
and restrictions compared to the first wave. At all times, physical health and emotional 
wellbeing of our employees and business partners remained of foremost importance to the 
Company and all efforts were taken to mitigate impact on our operations. In responds to 
this crisis, our primary objective has been to ensure the safety of our employees, to deliver 
our contractual and customer commitments, and put in place mechanisms to protect the 
financial wellbeing of the Company. 

The Company is working towards being resilient in order to sail through the current 
situation. It is focused on controlling the fixed costs, maintaining liquidity and closely 
monitoring the supply chain to ensure that the content and distribution business facilities 
operate smoothly. 

DIVIDEND 

The Directors express their inability to declare any dividend for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2021 on account of losses during the year under review. The Company has not 
made any transfer to General Reserve. 

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCTION AND PROTECTION 
FUND 

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no 
dividend declared and paid. 

DEPOSITS 

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposit from public under 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 
 
CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 
 
There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company during the year. 
 
DIRECTORS 

There are six Directors on the Board of Directors of the company viz. Ms. Anuradha Prasad 
Shukla (DIN- 00010716), Sudhir Shukla (DIN-01567595), Mr. Anil Kapoor (DIN: 
05113976), Ms. Urmila Gupta (DIN-00637110), Mr. Vinay Kumar Srivastava 
(DIN:00808735) and Mr. Pankaj Chaturvedi (DIN: 00003278).  

Independent Directors 

In terms of definition of Independent Director as prescribed under the SEBI Listing 
Regulations and Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and based on the confirmation/ 
disclosures received from the Directors, the Non-executive directors are Independent 
Director: 
1. Ms. Urmila Gupta 
2. Mr. Pankaj Chaturvedi 



 
All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of 
independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act. In the opinion of the Board, the 
Independent Directors, fulfil the conditions of independence specified in Section 149(6) of 
the Act. A formal letter of appointment to Independent Directors as provided in Companies 
Act, 2013 has been issued. 
 
Appointments/ Resignations from the Board of Directors 
 
During the financial year under review, there was no changes in the Board of Directors of 
the Company.  
 
Appointments/ Resignations of the Key Managerial Personnel 
 
During the reporting period under review, Mr. Anil Kapoor, Whole Time Director, Mr. Subodh 
Kumar, Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Pinki Pilani, Secretary of the Company are the Key 
Managerial Personnel as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, holding the 
respective positions in the Company.  
 
Directors Retiring by Rotation 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of Articles of 
Association of the Company, Mr. Vinay Kumar Srivastava (DIN:00808735) retires by 
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible applied himself for re-
appointment. Your board of Directors had recommended his re-appointment. 
 
Meetings  

During the year 6 (six) Meetings of the Board of Directors were duly convened on 
29.06.2020, 31.08.2020, 14.09.2020, 10.11.2020, 11.02.2021 and 18.03.2021. The 
intervening gap between the meetings was within the time limit prescribed under the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder. The meetings of the 
Board/Committees are generally held at the Corporate Office at FC-23, Film City, Sector-
16A, Noida-201301, (U.P.).  

Composition of Committees of the Board of Directors  
 
The Board Committees play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and 
have been constituted to deal with specific areas/activities which concern the Company and 
needs a closer review. The Board Committees are set up under the formal approval of the 
Board to carry out clearly defined roles which are considered to be performed by members 
of the Board. The terms of reference of Board Committees are determined by the Board 
from time to time. 
 
At present the Board has following three committees: 
1. Audit Committee 
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
3. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
 
In addition to the above, the Board also constitutes specific committees, from time to time, 
depending on the business exigencies and simultaneously dissolves such Committees as are 
no longer required. The terms of reference of the Committees are reviewed and modified by 
the Board from time to time. Meetings of each Committee are convened by the respective 
Committee Chairman. The Company Secretary prepares the agenda and explanatory notes, 
in consultation with the respective Committee Chairman and circulates the same in advance 
to all the members. Every member is free to suggest inclusion of item(s) on the agenda. 
Minutes of the Committee meetings are approved by the respective Committee and 
thereafter placed before the Board.  



 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
The Company has constituted an Audit Committee of Directors in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder.  
 
i) Terms of reference 
 
The broad terms of reference are as under: 

1. Overseeing financial reporting process and disclosure of financial information, to 
ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible; 

 
2. Recommending appointment, reappointment and terms of appointment and removal 

of the statutory and internal auditors, if any, of remuneration, fixation of audit fees 
and approval for payment of any other services; 

 
3. Reviewing with the management, the periodical financial statements including 

subsidiaries / associates, if any, before submission to the Board for approval; 
 
4. Reviewing with the management and the statutory auditors, the adequacy of internal 

control systems and recommending improvements to the management; 
 
5. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by auditors into matters where 

there is suspected fraud or irregularity or failure of internal control systems of a 
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board; 

 
6. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and 

scope of audit, as well as post-audit discussions to ascertain any area of concern; 
 
7. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management system; 
 
8. Reviewing and monitoring auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness 

of audit process; 
9. Scrutiny of Inter-corporate loans and advances; 
 
10. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related 

parties; 
11. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary; and 
 
12. Such other functions as may be delegated by the Board from time to time. 
 

The meetings of Audit Committee are also attended by Financial Officer, Statutory Auditors. 
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. The minutes of each Audit 
Committee meeting are placed and discussed in the meeting of the Board.  
 
(ii) Composition of the Committee: - 
 
Presently, the Audit Committee of the Company comprises of Non-Executive Directors. Ms. 
Urmila Gupta, Chairperson of the Committee is a Non-Executive Independent Director. Other 
members are Mr. Vinay Kumar Srivastava, Non-Executive Director and Mr. Pankaj 
Chaturvedi, Non-Executive Independent Director. All the members possess financial, 
management and accounting knowledge/ expertise and have held or hold senior positions in 
several reputed organizations. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the 
time limit prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder. 
 
During financial year ending March 31, 2021 six (6) Audit Committee Meetings were held on 
June 29, 2020; August 31, 2020, September 14, 2020, November 10, 2020 February 11, 
2021 and March 18, 2021 respectively. 



 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 
The Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors in 
compliance with provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
(i) Terms of Reference 
 
Brief terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under: 

 
• Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the 
remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees; 

• Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board; 
• Devising a policy on Board diversity; 
• Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed 

in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to 
the Board their appointment and removal. 

 
All the matters relating to finalization of remuneration to executive directors are being taken 
in the meeting of said Committee for their consideration and approval. 
 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors is authorized to decide the 
remuneration of the Managing Director/Executive Director's, subject to the approval of the 
Members and Central Government, if required. Remuneration comprises of fixed Component 
viz. salary, perquisites and allowances and a variable component. 
 
(ii) Composition of the Committee 
 
Presently, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company comprises of Non-
executive Directors of the Board. The Chairman of the Committee is Mr. Sudhir Shukla, a 
Non-Executive Director. Other members are Ms. Urmila Gupta, Non-Executive Independent 
Director and Mr. Pankaj Chaturvedi, Non-Executive Independent Director. Ms. Pinki Pilani, 
Company Secretary act as the Secretary of the Committee. 
 
During financial year 2020-21, one Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings was 
held on March 18, 2021. 
 
(iii) Nomination and Remuneration Policy 
 
The Remuneration policy of the Company is a comprehensive policy which is in consonance 
with the industry practices. The policy ensures equality, fairness and consistency in 
rewarding the employees on the basis of performance against set objectives. 
 
The Company’s Policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial 
remuneration, Directors’ qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and 
other related matters as provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is 
furnished in Annexure I and forms part of this Report. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 
 
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee) was formed pursuant to 
section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, to formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company as 
specified in Schedule VII to the Act and to recommend the amount of expenditure to be 
incurred on such activities and to monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the 
Company from time to time. 



 
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of four members i.e. Mr. Sudhir 
Shukla, Chairman of the Committee, a Non-Executive Director and other members are Mr. 
Anil Kapoor, a Whole Time Director, Ms. Urmila Gupta, Non-Executive Independent Director 
and Mr. Pankaj Chaturvedi, Non-Executive Independent Director. Ms. Pinki Pilani, Company 
Secretary act as the Secretary of the Committee. 
 
During the financial year 2020-21, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met on 
March 18, 2021. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY 
 
Your Company has been actively contributing to the overall growth of the society through 
various CSR initiatives undertaken either by it in the field of education to underprivileged 
children. It has now expanded its wings to support education of underprivileged children by 
providing them financial aid, support and facilitates all activities in connection thereto.  
 
Further, the Board of Directors of your Company has also adopted the CSR Policy of the 
Company as approved by the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. 
 
During the financial year ending March 31, 2021 under review, the provisions of section 135 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Rules, 2014 are not applicable due to the loss for continuous preceding three 
financial years in the company.  
 
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT  
 
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to 
the Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:- 
 
a) in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 

2021, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures, if any;  

 
b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at end of financial year and of the 
loss of the Company for that period;  

 
c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities;  

 
d) they have prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 

of the Company on a ‘going concern’ basis. 
 

e) the internal financial controls to be followed by the Company were laid down and 
such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and 

 
f) They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems are in place and are adequate and operating 
effectively. 
 

 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 



The Annual Return of the Company as on 31st March, 2021 is available on the website of 
the Company at https://e24bollywood.com/investors/   

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

The Company has one wholly owned foreign subsidiary named as E24 Entertainment 
Limited. No other Subsidiary / Joint-venture was formed or divested during the year under 
review.  

In compliance with Section 129 of the Companies Act, a statement containing requisite 
details including financial highlights of the operations of Subsidiary in the prescribed format, 
form part of this Financial Statements. 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Consolidated Financial Statements of subsidiary Company in terms of Section 129(3) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are 
prepared in accordance with the Companies relevant Accounting Standards (AS) viz. AS 21, 
AS 23 and AS 27 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India form part of this 
Annual Report. 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

The Board has adopted policies and procedure for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of fraud, error reporting mechanism, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
disclosures.  

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
 
Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 
of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements. 
 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
In line with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, as 
applicable, your Company has formulated a Policy on Related Party Transactions. The Policy 
intends to ensure that proper reporting approval and disclosure processes are in place for all 
transactions between the Company and Related Parties.  
 
All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an 
arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. There are no materially 
significant related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with 
the interest of the Company at large. All Related Party Transactions entered during the year 
were placed before the Audit Committee for review and approval. 
 
The particulars of related parties’ transactions referred to in subsection (1) of section 188 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso 
thereto are disclosed in Form No. AOC -2 in Annexure II forming part of the Board’s 
Report. 
 
 
 
AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

https://e24bollywood.com/investors/


Statutory Auditors 

M/s. Kumar Khare & Co., Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No 006740C), 
Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 10th 
Annual General Meeting held on September 26, 2017 for a term of five consecutive years on 
remuneration mutually agreed upon by the Board of Directors and Statutory Auditors. They 
have confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the Company. 

Pursuant to the amendments made to Section 139 of the Act by the Companies 
(Amendment) Act, 2017 effective from May 7, 2018, the requirement of seeking ratification 
of the Members for the appointment of the Statutory Auditors has been withdrawn from the 
Statute. Hence the resolution seeking ratification of the Members for continuance of their 
appointment at this AGM is not being sought. 

Qualification in Auditors reports  

The Report given by the Statutory Auditors on the financial statements of the Company 
forms part of this Annual Report. There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse 
remarks made by M/s. Kumar Khare & Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors, in 
their report for the financial year 2020-21. 

There is no instance of fraud during the year under review which requires the statutory 
Auditors to report to the Audit Committee and/or Board under section 143(12) of the Act 
and Rules framed thereunder. 

Secretarial Auditors 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s Balika 
Sharma & Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice (C.P.No. 3222) to 
undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2020-21. 
 
Pursuant to the provision of section 204 and Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 
a Secretarial Audit Report in Form No. MR-3 for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 is 
annexed as Annexure III and forms an integral part of this Report. The said Report does 
not contain any qualification, reservation, disclaimer or observation requiring explanation or 
comments from the Board under Section 134(3) of the Act. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing or processing activity, as such 
particulars required to be given in terms of Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read along with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, regarding conservation of energy and 
technology absorption are not applicable. 

During the year, your Company has not incurred any expenditure in foreign currency as 
against nil in the previous financial year 2019-2020 and not earned in foreign currency as 
against nil in the previous financial year 2019-2020. 

 SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS 

There were no significant or material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunals 
which would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

SHARE CAPITAL 



 
We have one class of shares-equity share of par value of Rs.10 each. Our authorized share 
capital is Rs. 300,000,000 divided in to 30,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each. The issued 
subscribed and paid up Equity Share Capital stood at Rs. 269,689,120/- divided into 
26,968,912 equity shares of Rs. 10 each as at March 31, 2021 which is same as at March 
31, 2020.  
 
During the year under review, the Company has made payment of Rs. 6,54,99,000/- 
against 6,54,990 Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures (OFCDs) of News24 Broadcast 
India Limited. 
 
DISCLOSURE IN TERMS OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) Act, 2013 
 
In terms of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has an internal complaints committee in place, which 
entertains the complaints made by any aggrieved person.  
 
During the financial year under review, there have been no cases reported in this regard. 
 
PERSONNEL 
 
There is no employee whose particulars are required to be disclosed under Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 
Your Directors thank the various Central and State Government Departments, organizations 
and agencies for the continued help and co-operation extended by them. 
 
Your Directors also gratefully acknowledge all stakeholders of the Company viz. viewers, 
listener, producers, vendors, members, dealers, auditors, consultants, legal advisor banks 
and other business partners for the excellent support received from them during the year. 
The Directors place on record their sincere appreciation to all employees of the Company for 
their unstinted commitment and continued contribution to the Company. 
 

 
 
       For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
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Annexure -I 

 

“NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY OF DIRECTORS,   
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES” 

                 [E24 Glamour Limited] 
                                  

 

INTRODUCTION 
 

Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meeting of Board and its 
Powers) Rules, 2014 as amended require the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the 
Board of Directors of every listed entity, among other classes of companies, to 
 
- formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 
director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employees. 
 
- identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their 
appointment and removal. 
 
- carry out evaluation of every director’s performance. 
 
- formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board. 
 
Accordingly, in adherence to the above said requirements and in line with the Company philosophy 
towards nurturing its human resources, Board of Directors adopted the Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy of E24 Glamour Limited (hereinafter called as E24) for the directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employees of the Company, duly recommended by Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee as set out below. 
 
COMPANY PHILOSHPHY 
 

E24 is an equal opportunities employer. The organization does not discriminate on grounds of age, 
gender, color, race, ethnicity, language, caste, creed, economic or social status or disability. Pay 
revisions and other benefits are designed in such a way to compensate good performance of the 
employees of the Company and motivate them to do better in future. 
 
The endeavor of the organization is to acknowledge the contributions of its directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employees with best compensation and benefits that 
appropriately reward performance in line with the regulatory and industry best practices. 
 
 
GUIDING PRINCIPLES 
 



 

                                                                                                                                                                
 

In the formulation of this Policy, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has also 
endeavored to ensure the guiding principles as prescribed u/s 178(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and rules made thereunder, summarized as below: 
 

a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain 
and motivate human resource including directors of the quality required to run the 
company successfully; 
b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks; 
c) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management reflecting 
short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and 
its goals; 
d) facilitating effective shareholder participation in key Corporate Governance decisions 
such as the nomination and election of board members; 
e) aligning key executive and board remuneration with the longer term interests of the 
company and its shareholders; 
f) ensuring a transparent board nomination process with the diversity of thought, 
experience, knowledge, perspective and gender in the Board. 
 

NOMINATION OF THE DIRECTORS 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors is dedicated to ensuring 
the continuance of a dynamic and forward-thinking Board and recommend to the Board qualified 
candidates for directorship. 
 
Before recommending a nominee’s candidature to the Board for being appointed as a Director, the 
following criteria set out may be applied as guidelines in considering potential nominees to the 
Board of Directors. 
 
General Criteria 
 

- The background and qualifications of the Directors considered as a group should provide a 
significant breadth of experience, knowledge and abilities to assist the Board in fulfilling its 
responsibilities. 
 
Diversity reflecting gender, ethnic background, country of citizenship and professional 
experience diverse professional and personal backgrounds. 
 
- Commitment of the nominee to understanding the Company and its industry, embracing 
the organisation’s values to help shape its vision, mission and strategic direction including 
oversight of risk management and internal control. 
 
- Commitment of the nominee to spending the time necessary to function effectively as a 
Director, including attending and participating in meetings of the Board and its 
Committees. 

 
 
Specific Criteria 
 

- Demonstrated business acumen, experience and ability to use sound judgment and to 
contribute to the effective oversight of the business and financial affairs of a large, 
multifaceted, global organisation. 

 
- The nominee reflects the right corporate tone and culture and excels at board-
management relationships. 



 

                                                                                                                                                                
 

- Experience in strategic planning and managing multidisciplinary responsibilities, the 
ability to navigate among diverse professional groups and points of view, a track record of 
communicating effectively in a global environment, and high standards of integrity and 
professional conduct. 
- Nominees understand and endeavor to balance the interests of shareholders and/ or 
other stakeholders and put the interests of the company or organisation above self-
interest. He/ she has demonstrated a commitment to transparency and disclosure. 
- He/ she is committed to superior corporate performance, consistently striving to go 
beyond the legal and/or regulatory governance requirements to enhance, not just protect, 
shareholder value. 
- Nominee contributes to effective governance through superior, constructive relationships 
with the Executive Directorate and management. 

 
 
REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS 
 
The Company strives to provide fair compensation to directors, taking into consideration industry 
benchmarks, Company’s performance vis-à-vis the industry, responsibilities shouldered, 
performance/track record, macroeconomic review on remuneration packages of heads of other 
organisations. 
The remuneration payable to the Directors of the Company shall at all times be determined, in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Appointment and Remuneration of Managing Director and Whole-time Director 
 
The terms and conditions of appointment and remuneration payable to a Managing Director and 
Whole-time Director(s) shall be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to 
the Board for its approval which shall be subject to approval by shareholders at the next general 
meeting of the Company and by the Central Government in case such appointment is at variance 
to the conditions specified in Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. Approval of the Central 
Government is not necessary if the appointment is made in accordance with the conditions 
specified in Schedule V to the Act. 
 
 
While recommending the remuneration payable to a Managing/ Whole-time Director, the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall, inter alia, have regard to the following matters: 
 
• Financial and operating performance of the Company 
 
• Relationship between remuneration and performance 
 
• Industry/ sector trends for the remuneration paid to executive directorate 
 
Annual Increments to the Managing/ Whole-time Director(s) shall be within the slabs approved by 
the Shareholders. Increments shall be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at 
times it desires to do so but preferably on an annual basis. 
 
 
Remuneration of Independent Directors 
 
Independent Directors may receive remuneration by way of 
 

• Sitting fees for participation in the Board and other meetings, if approve, 
• Reimbursement of expenses for participation in the Board and other meetings 
• Commission as approved by the Shareholders of the Company 

 



 

                                                                                                                                                                
 

Independent Directors shall not be entitled to any stock options. 
 
Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board may 
decide the sitting fee payable to independent directors. However, the Company is not paying any 
sitting fee to any Independent Director. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed 
the maximum permissible under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Remuneration to Directors in other Capacity 
 
The remuneration payable to the directors including Managing or Whole-time Director or Manager 
shall be inclusive of the remuneration payable for the services rendered by him in any other 
capacity except the following: 
 
(a) the services rendered are of a professional nature; and 
 
(b) in the opinion of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the director possesses the 
requisite qualification for the practice of the profession. 
 
 
EVALUATION OF THE DIRECTORS 
 
As members of the Board, the performance of the individual Directors as well as the performance 
of the entire Board and its Committees is required to be formally evaluated annually. 
 
Section 178(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 also mandates the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee to carry out evaluation of every director’s performance. 
 
 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION OF THE KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (OTHER 
THAN MANAGING DIRECTORS/WHOLE TIME DIRECTORS), KEY EXECUTIVES AND 
SENIOR MANAGEMENTS 

 
 
The Companies Act, 2013 has for the first time recognized the concept of Key Managerial 
Personnel. As per section 2(51) “key managerial personnel”, in relation to a company, means: 
 
(i) the Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager; 
(ii) the Whole-time Director; 
(iii) the Chief Financial Officer; 
(iv) the Company Secretary; and 
(v) such other officer as may be prescribed. 
 
Among the KMPs, the remuneration of the CEO or the Managing Director and the Whole-time 
Director(s), shall be governed by the Section on REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS of this 
Policy dealing with “Remuneration of Managing Director and Whole-time Director”. 
 
Apart from the directors, the remuneration of 
 
- All the Other KMPs such as the company secretary or any other officer that may be prescribed 

under the statute from time to time; and 
 



 

                                                                                                                                                                
 

- “Senior Management” of the Company defined in the clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the 
Stock Exchanges i.e. personnel who are members of its core management team excluding the 
Board of Directors. Senior executives’ one level below the Board shall be determined by the 
Human Resources Department of the Company. 

 
The remuneration determined for all the above said senior personnel shall be in line with the 
Company’s philosophy to provide fair compensation to key - executive officers based on their 
performance and contribution to the Company and to provide incentives that attract and retain 
key executives, instill a long-term commitment to the Company, and develop a pride and sense of 
Company ownership, all in a manner consistent with shareholders interests. 
 
The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer’s contribution to 
P.F., pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided by the Company’s HR 
department. 
 
Decisions on Annual Increments of the Senior Personnel shall be decided by the Human Resources 
Department in consultation with the Managing Director and/ or the Whole-time Director of the 
Company. 
 
REMUNERATION OF THE EMPLOYEES 
 
 
Apart from the Directors, KMPs and Senior Management, the remuneration for rest of the 
employees is determined on the basis of the role and position of the individual employee, including 
professional experience, responsibility, job complexity and local market conditions. 
 
The Company considers it essential to incentivize the workforce to ensure adequate and 
reasonable compensation to the staff. The Human Resources Department shall ensure that the 
level of remuneration motivates and rewards high performers who perform according to set 
expectations for the individual in question. 
 
The various remuneration components, basic salary, allowances, perquisites etc. may be combined 
to ensure an appropriate and balanced remuneration package. 
 
The annual increments to the remuneration paid to the employees shall be determined based on 
the annual appraisal carried out by the HODs of various departments. Decisions on Annual 
Increments shall be made on the basis of this annual appraisal. 
 
GENERAL 
 
This Policy shall apply to all future employment of Company’s Senior Management including Key 
Managerial Personnel and Board of Directors. 
 
Any or all the provisions of this Policy would be subject to the revision/ amendment in the 
Companies Act, 2013, related rules and regulations, guidelines and the Listing Agreement on the 
subject as may be notified from time to time. Any such amendment shall automatically have the 
effect of amending this Policy without the need of any approval by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and/or the Board of Directors. 



 

Annexure II 

        
      FORM NO. AOC-2 
 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso is given below: 
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis: 

    There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered during the year ended March     
   31, 2021 which were not at arm’s length basis. 
 
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the 
related party 

Nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts or 

arrangements 
or  transaction 

Duration of 
contracts or 

arrangements 
or 

transactions 

Salient 
Terms 

Amount 
(In Rs.) 

 
1 

B.A.G. Films 
and Media 

Limited 

Holding 
Company 

Leasing/ 
Carriage 

Fee/Television 
Programming 

 
Continuing 

As per 
Related Party 
Transaction 

Policy 

 
6,02,72,004 

2 Skyline Tele 
Media 

Services 
Limited 

Enterprises 
over which 
KMP have 
significant 
influence 

Up linking/ 
Carriage Charges 

 
Continuing 

As per 
Related Party 
Transaction 

Policy 

 
70,50,000 

3. B.A.G. Live 
Entertainment 

Limited 

Enterprises 
over which 
KMP have 
significant 
influence 

Up linking/ 
Carriage Charges 

 
Continuing 

As per 
Related Party 
Transaction 

Policy 

 
10,03,36,000 

4. News24 
Broadcast 

India Limited 

Enterprises 
over which 
KMP have 
significant 
influence 

Sale of time 
space/Content 

Expenses  

Continuing As per 
Related Party 
Transaction 

Policy 

 
7,01,15,000 

 
               
 

          For and on behalf of the Board of Director 
                                            E24 Glamour Limited 
 
 
         

Anuradha Prasad Shukla 
Date: June 29, 2021                                                   Chairperson 
Place: Noida                                            DIN: 00010716 
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Annexure-III 
Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9  
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
 
To, 
The Members, 
E24 Glamour Limited 
[CIN: U92419DL2007PLC160548] 
 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by E24 Glamour Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, 
the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year commencing from 1st April, 2020 and 
ended on 31st March, 2021 (“Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also 
that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 according to the provisions of: 
 
1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder to the extent notified and came into 

force; 
 

2) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 
 

3) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
 

4) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (FEMA) & the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 
 

5) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’); 
 

6) Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the Company belongs, as identified and compliance 
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Balika Sharma And Associates 
Company Secretaries 

 

whereof as confirmed by the management, that is to say: 
 

a. Policy Guidelines for Uplinking of Television Channels issued by the Ministry of Information & 
Broadcasting; 

 
b. Policy Guidelines for Downlinking of Television Channels issued by the Ministry of Information & 

Broadcasting; 
 
c. Cable Television Network (Regulations) Act, 1995 read with Amendments 
 
d. Cable Television Network Rules, 1994 read with Amendments; 
 
e. The Telecommunication (Broadcasting and Cable Services) Interconnection (Addressable Systems) 

Regulations, 2012; 
 
f. Telecom Regulatory Authority of India Act, 1997 r/w Standards of Quality of Service (Duration of 

Advertisements in Television Channels) Regulations 2012; 
 
g. Standard of Quality of Service (Duration of Advertisements in Television Channels) (Amendment) 

Regulations, 2013 issued by Telecom Regulatory Authority of India; 
 
h. Information Technology (Intermediary Guidelines and Digital Media Ethics Code) Rules, 2021. 
 

We report that during the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines etc. mentioned above.  
 
We further report that 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors.  
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and a system 
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting 
and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 
Majority decisions were carried out with unanimous consent and therefore no dissenting views were captured 
and recorded as part of the minutes 
 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines as stated above. 
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We further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of: 
 
(i) Redemption / buy-back of securities. 
(ii) Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction etc. 
(iii) Foreign technical collaborations. 
  
We further report that during the audit period the Company had no events which had bearing on the 
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc. 
 
 
 
 

For Balika Sharma & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

 
Place: Noida 
Date: 29.06.2021  

Balika Sharma 
Proprietor 

FCS No: 4816 
C P No: 3222 

                                                                         UDIN number F004816C000519693 
 

 
 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure 1 and forms an integral 
part of this report. 
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Annexure 1 
To, 
The Members, 
E24 Glamour Limited 
[CIN: U92419DL2007PLC160548] 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter: 
 

1. Management of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

 
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. The verification was done 
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the 
processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts 

of the Company. 
 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations & happening of events etc. 

 
5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 

is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on 
test basis. 

 
6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company not the 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 

For Balika Sharma & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Place: Noida 
Date: 29.06.2021  

Balika Sharma 
Proprietor 

FCS No: 4816 
C P No: 3222 

UDIN number F004816C000519693 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
To The Members of  
E24 Glamour Limited, 
 
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 
Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements E24 Glamour Limited (the 
Company), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in 
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to be the standalone financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and 
profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 
date.  
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SA) specified under Section 143 (10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the independence 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and 
the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
Revenue recognition- Rebates and Discounts 
 
The key audit matter 
The standalone financial statements, revenue is measured net of any trade discounts and volume   rebates. 
Material estimation by the Company is involved in recognition and measurement of rebates and 
discounts. This includes establishing an accrual at year end, particularly in arrangements with varying 
terms which are based on annual contracts or shorter-term arrangements. In addition, the value and 
timing of promotions for products varies from period to period, and the activity can span beyond the year 
end. 

We identified the evaluation of accrual for rebates and discounts as a key audit matter. 
 
How the matter was addressed in our audit 
Our audit procedures included: 

• Evaluating the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of Company’s general IT controls, 
key manual and application controls over the Company’s IT systems. They cover control over 
computation of discounts and rebates and rebate and discount accruals; 

• Inspecting on a sample basis, key customer contracts. Based on the terms and conditions relating to 
rebates and discounts, we assessed the Company’s revenue recognition policies with reference to the 
requirements of the applicable accounting standards; 

• Performing substantive testing by selecting samples of rebate and discount transactions recorded 
during the year and matching the parameters used in the computation with the relevant source 
documents; 

• Understanding the process followed by the Company to determine the amount of accrual of rebates 
and discounts. Testing samples of rebate accruals and comparing to underlying documentation; 

• Testing actualisation of estimated accruals on a sample basis; 
• Examining historical rebate accrual together with our understanding of current year developments to 

form an expectation of the rebate accrual at period end. We compared this expectation against the 
actual rebate accrual, completing further inquiries and obtaining underlying documentation, on a 
sample basis, as appropriate. Further, we also performed retrospective review to evaluate the 
precision with which management makes estimates. 

• Critically assessing manual journal entries posted to revenue, on a sample basis, to identify unusual 
items and examining the underlying documentation. 

• Checking completeness and accuracy of the data used by the Company for accrual of rebates and 
discounts. 

• Testing a selection of rebate accruals recorded after 31 March 2021 and assessing whether the accrual 
is recorded in the correct period 

• Testing a selection of payments made after 31 March 2021 and where relevant, comparing the 
payment to the related rebate accrual 
 

Provisions and contingent liabilities relating to taxation, litigations and claims 
 

The key audit matter 
The provisions and contingent liabilities relate to ongoing litigations and claims with various authorities 
and third parties. These relate to direct tax, indirect tax, transfer pricing arrangements, claims, general 
legal proceedings, environmental issues and other eventualities arising in the regular course of business. 
 
As at the year ended 31 March 2021, the amounts involved are significant. The computation of a provision 
or contingent liability requires significant judgement by the Company because of the inherent complexity 
in estimating future costs. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure. 
The provisions and contingent liabilities are subject to changes in the outcomes of litigations and claims 
and the positions taken by the Company. It involves significant judgement and estimation to determine 
the likelihood and timing of the cash outflows and interpretations of the legal aspects, tax legislations and 
judgements previously made by authorities. 



 
How the matter was addressed in our audit 
Our audit procedures included: 

• Evaluating the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal controls around 
the recognition and measurement of provisions and re-assessment of development of contingent 
liabilities; 

• Involving our tax professionals with specialised skills and knowledge to assist in the assessment of 
the value of significant provisions and contingent liabilities relating to taxation matter, on sample 
basis, in light of the nature of the exposures, applicable regulations and related correspondence with 
the authorities; 

• Inquiring the status in respect of significant provisions and contingent liabilities with the Company’s 
internal tax and legal team. We challenged the assumptions and critical judgements made by the 
Company which impacted the computation of the provisions and inspected the computation. We 
assessed the assumptions used and estimates of outcome and financial effect. We considered 
judgement of the Company, supplemented by experience of similar decisions previously made by the 
authorities and, in some cases, relevant opinions given by the Company’s advisors; 

• Evaluating judgements made by the Company by comparing the estimates of prior year to the actual 
outcome; 

• Assessing the Company’s disclosures in the financial statements in respect of provisions and 
contingent liabilities; 

• Testing data used to develop the estimate for completeness and accuracy. 
 

 
Other Information 
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the 
standalone financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.  
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements  
 
The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs, profit / loss (including other comprehensive income), changes in 
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 
 
 



 
In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these standalone financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
 
 
 



We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  
 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, 
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

 
2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:  
 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;  

 
(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 

as it appears from our examination of those books;  
 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account. 

 
(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 

Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act. 
 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021, and 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021, 
from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;  

 
(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure B”. 

  
3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;  

 
2. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses. 
 
 



3. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 

 
 

 
 
 
                               

                                                 For Kumar Khare & Co. 
                          Chartered Accountants 

                ICAI Firm Registration Number. 006740C 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
                                                                                                              Alok Khare 
Place: Noida                                                                                                              Partner    
Date: June 29, 2021                                                              Membership No.075236 
              UDIN: 21075236AAAAR7958 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Annexure A   
to the Independent Auditors' Report on the Standalone Financial Statements of 
the E24 Glamour Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021 
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report of even date)  
 
i. In respect of its fixed assets: 

 
(a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details         

and situation of fixed assets.   
                 

(b)  The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of fixed assets which, in our opinion, 
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance 
with this programme, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the management during the 
year and we are informed that no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.  

 
(c)  The Company does not have any immovable properties taken on lease that are disclosed as fixed 

asset in the standalone financial statements. 
 
ii. The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the 

frequency of such verification is reasonable. According to the information and explanations given to 
us and examined by us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 
  

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, 
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in 
the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) 
of the order is not applicable. 

  
iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans, 

investments guarantees and security, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

accepted deposits from the public within the meaning of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of 
India, provisions of section 73 to 76 of the Act, any other relevant provisions of the Act and the 
relevant rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

 
vi. To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the 

maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of the section 148 of the Act for any of the activities 
of the company and accordingly paragraph 3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company    

examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues 
including provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, duty of 
customs, cess, professional tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate 
authorities.  

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in  
respect of provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, duty of 
customs, cess, professional tax and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2021 
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.             

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales 
tax, value added tax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise which have 
not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. 

 



viii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of loans or borrowing dues to banks and financial institutions. The Company did not 
have any outstanding loan or borrowing dues in respect of a government or dues to debenture 
holders. 

 
ix. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise any money 

by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. 
Further, the term loans taken by the Company have been applied for the purpose for which they 
were raised. 

 
x. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the 
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor 
have we been informed of any such case by the management. 

  
xi. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and 
hence not commented upon. 
 

xii. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company is not a 
Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 
177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions have 
been disclosed in the standalone financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting 
standards. 
 

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the current year. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.  
  

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or 
persons connected to its directors. Accordingly paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

xvi. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required to be 
registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 
3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
 

                            For KUMAR KHARE & CO. 
            Chartered Accountants 

                                                        Firm Registration Number: 006740C 
   
 
 
 
         
                                                                                                              Alok Khare 
Place: Noida                                                                                                              Partner    
Date: June 29, 2021                                                              Membership No.075236 
             UDIN: 21075236AAAAR7958
                                  



Annexure B 
Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s report on the standalone financial statements of E24 
Glamour Limited for the period ended 31 March 2021 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to 
the E24 Glamour Limited of even date) 

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements under Clause (i) of Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
 
Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of E24 Glamour Limited (‘the 
Company’) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended on that date. 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system 
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 
31 March 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance note”).  

 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance note”) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding 
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and deemed to be prescribed under 
Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financials Reporting(IFCoFR) and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI . Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 
 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that: 
 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;  
 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and  
 
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of 
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 
 
 

                 For KUMAR  KHARE & CO. 
            Chartered Accountants 

                                                        Firm Registration Number: 006740C 
   
 
 
 
 
         
                                                                                                            Alok Khare 
Place: Noida                                                                                                              Partner    
Date: June 29, 2021                                                              Membership No.075236 
                                      UDIN: 21075236AAAAR7958
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



E24 GLAMOUR LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
As at March 31, 2021 Amount in 

Particulars Note No.
  As at 

March 31,2021 
  As at 

March 31,2020 

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 16,094,092                     20,845,450                     
Investment in subsidiaries 4 58,995,000                     58,995,000                     
Financial assets
       Investments 4 1,325,699,420                1,325,699,420                
Deferred Tax balances 5 93,696                            686,735                          

1,400,882,208                1,406,226,605                

Current assets
Inventories 6 64,740,492                     64,997,278                     
Financial assets
       Trade receivables 7 71,090,019                     101,363,571                   
       Cash and cash equivalents 8 8,418,276                       176,522,942                   
        Other financial assets 9 14,946,454                     7,295,364                       
Other current assets 10 17,493,671                     29,588,237                     

176,688,912                   379,767,392                   
Total 1,577,571,120                1,785,993,997                

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Kumar Khare & Co. Anil  Kapoor
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 006740C   DIN: 05113976

Alok Khare Pinki Pilani
Partner   Company Secretary
Membership Number: 075236
Place:Noida
Date:June 29, 2021

Anuradha Prasad Shukla
                  Director                               Whole Time  Director 

DIN: 00010716

Subodh Kumar
Chief Finacial Officer



Balance Sheet (Contd.)

Amount in 

Particulars
Note 
No.

  As at 
March 31,2021 

  As at 
March 31,2020 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 
Equity share capital 11 269,689,120                     269,689,120                      
Other equity 12 776,944,600                     830,848,127                      

1,046,633,720                  1,100,537,247                   

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
         Other financial liabilties 13 230,367,192                     315,866,192                      
Provisions 14 1,484,192                         1,867,256                          

231,851,384                     317,733,448                      

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
         Trade payables
            Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 15 -                                    -                                     
            Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 15                         65,606,020                          61,115,483 
                 and small enterprises
           Other financial liabilities 16 180,445,020                     250,337,778                      
Other current liabilities 17 53,034,976                       56,270,041                        

299,086,016                     367,723,302                      
Total 1,577,571,120                  1,785,993,997                   

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Kumar Khare & Co. Anil  Kapoor
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 006740C   DIN: 05113976

Alok Khare Pinki Pilani
Partner   Company Secretary
Membership Number: 075236
Place:Noida
Date:June 29, 2021

Chief Finacial Officer

Anuradha Prasad Shukla
                  Director                               Whole Time  Director 

DIN: 00010716

Subodh Kumar



STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Particulars Note No.
 Year ended

 March 31,2021 
 Year ended

 March 31,2020 

Sales 18 206,145,959                        224,168,930                   
Other income 19 4,187,088                            7,987,220                       
Total Income 210,333,047                        232,156,150                   

Expenses
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded 
goods 20 256,786                               (2,498,200)                      
Employee benefits expense 21 17,274,122                          29,149,067                     
Finance costs 22 27,086,496                          32,731,467                     
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 4,771,104                            6,230,754                       
Other expenses 24 214,119,515                        191,706,472                   
Total Expenses 263,508,023                        257,319,560                   

Profit before tax (53,174,976)                        (25,163,410)                    

Tax expense
        Deferred tax 593,039                               867,271                          
Total tax expense 593,039                               867,271                          

Profit for the year (A) (53,768,015)                        (26,030,681)                    

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
          Acturial gains/losses of defined benefit plans (135,512)                              (285,638)                         
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (135,512)                              (285,638)                         

Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) (53,903,527)                        (26,316,319)                    
Nominal value per share Rs.10/- each
Earnings per equity share
Basic earnings from operations attributable to share holders (2.00)                                    (0.98)                               
Diluted earnings from operations attributable to share holders (2.00)                                    (0.98)                               

Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 2
The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Kumar Khare & Co. Anil  Kapoor
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 006740C DIN No. 00010716   DIN: 05113976

Alok Khare Pinki Pilani
Partner   Company Secretary
Membership Number: 075236
Place:Noida
Date:June 29, 2021

Anuradha Prasad Shukla
                          Director                  Whole Time  Director 

Subodh Kumar
Chief Finacial Officer



(Formerly Known as  B.A.G Glamour Limited)

Amount in Amount in Amount in Amount in 
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (53,310,488)                    (25,449,048)                    
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 4,771,104                            6,230,754                          
Finance costs 27,086,496                          32,731,467                        
Interest income (3,588,062)                          (7,903,437)                        
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back (366,214)                             55,780                               
Other non-cash charges 
   Adjustment Relating to earlier year -                                      (154,509)                           

27,903,324                     30,960,056                      
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes
Movements in working capital:

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories 256,786                               (2,498,200)                        
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables 30,273,579                          35,704,541                        
(Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets (7,651,090)                          16,453,665                        
(Increase) / Decrease in other current asset 12,094,566                          44,658                               

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables 4,856,751                            22,644,917                        
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities (3,235,092)                          8,411,458                          
Increase / (Decrease) in  other financial liabilities (69,892,758)                        (14,327,144)                      
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions (383,064)                             285,638                             

(33,680,322)                    66,719,534                      

Cash generated from operations (59,087,486)                    72,230,541                      
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) (59,087,486)                    72,230,541                      
B. Cash flow from investing activities

(19,746)                               -                                    
Purchase of long-term investments

  - Others -                                      35,450,300                        
Interest received

  - Others 3,588,062                            7,903,437                          
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) 3,568,316                       43,353,737                      

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of  other financial liabilities (85,499,000)                        (20,000,000)                      
Interest received (finance income) (27,086,496)                        (112,585,496)                  (32,731,467)                      (52,731,467)                    

Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) (112,585,496)                  (52,731,467)                    

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (168,104,666)                  62,852,810                      
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 176,522,942                   113,670,132                    
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8,418,276                       176,522,942                    

Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet 8,418,276                       176,522,942                    
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year * 8,418,276                       176,522,942                    

This is the Statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Kumar Khare & Co. Anurradha Prasad Shukla Anil  Kapoor
Firm Registration Number: 006740C      Director Whole Time Director
Chartered Accountants DIN No. 00010716   DIN: 05113976

Alok Khare Subodh Kumar Pinki Pialni
Partner Chief finacial officer   Company Secretary
Membership Number: 075236
Noida: June 29, 2021

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the Year ended March 31, 2021

Note: The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows’.

Particulars For the Year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Payment for Purchase of Property, plant and Equipment (PP&E)

Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the Balance 



3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

 Description of Assets 
 Plant & 

Equipment 
 Computers & 

Peripherals 
 Furnitures & 

Fixtures  Office Equipments  Total 
Gross Block

Balance as at 1st April, 2019 140,003,710     63,432,126               2,964,645                  6,087,991                      212,488,472              
Additions -                    -                            -                             -                                 -                             
Disposal -                    -                            -                             -                                 -                             

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 140,003,710     63,432,126               2,964,645                  6,087,991                      212,488,472              
Additions -                    -                            -                             19,746                           19,746                       
Disposal -                    -                            -                             -                                 -                             

Balance as at 31st March, 2021 140,003,710     63,432,126               2,964,645                  6,107,737                      212,508,218              
Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 1st April, 2019 113,260,304     63,427,120               2,944,055                  5,780,791                      185,412,270              
Additions 6,077,161         5,006                        10,123                       138,462                         6,230,753                  
Disposal -                    -                            -                             -                                 -                             

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 119,337,465     63,432,126               2,954,179                  5,919,253                      191,643,022              
Additions 4,678,121         -                            10,466                       82,516                           4,771,104                  
Disposal -                    -                            -                             -                                 -                             

Balance as at 31st March, 2021 124,015,586     63,432,126               2,964,645                  6,001,769                      196,414,126              
Net  Block
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 15,988,124       -                            -                             105,968                         16,094,092                
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 20,666,245       -                            10,466                       168,738                         20,845,450                



4.     NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Investment in equity instrument of subsidiares 
Wholly owned foreign subsidiaries :
(Unquoted) (at cost)
Investments in E24 Entertainment Limited 58,995,000                      58,995,000                         

58,995,000                      58,995,000                         
Investment in optionally fully convertible debentures (OFCDs) (unquoted) 
(unquoted) (at cost)

155,505,320                    155,505,320                       

428,290,500                    428,290,500                       

40,239,100                      40,239,100                         

21,587,900                      21,587,900                         

629,215,000                    629,215,000                       

50,861,600                      50,861,600                         

Total (B) 1,325,699,420                 1,325,699,420                    

1,384,694,420                 1,384,694,420                    

5.   DEFERRED TAX BALANCES Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Asset:
Deferred tax assets (net) 93,696                             686,735                               

93,696                              686,735                               
6.   INVENTORIES
Inventories consist of the following: Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

       Finished goods 64,740,492                      64,997,278                         
64,740,492                      64,997,278                         

7.  TRADE RECEIVABLES (UNSECURED)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

                       71,090,019 101,363,571                       
-                                   -                                      
-                                   -                                      

71,090,019                      101,363,571                       

8.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Cash on hand 860,710                           853,930                               
Balances with banks;
     -In Current accounts 5,601,197                        1,462,643                            
    - Term deposits with original maturity of less than three months 1,956,369                        174,206,369                       

8,418,276                        176,522,942                       

1,793,590 (Previous year 1,793,590) fully paid up Optionally Fully Convertible Debenture of Rs 100/- 
each in B.A.G Convergence Private Limited

4,282,905 (Previous year 4,282,905) fully paid up Optionally Fully Convertible Debenture of Rs 100/- 
each in B.A.G Live Entertainment Limited

Total (A+B)

402,391  (Previous year 554,820) fully paid up Optionally Fully Convertible Debenture of Rs 100/- 
each in  Skyline Radio Network Limited

215,879 (Previous year 215,879) fully paid up Optionally Fully Convertible Debenture of Rs 100/- 
each in B.A.G. Business Venture Private Limited

6,292,150 (Previous year 6,292,150) fully paid up Optionally Fully Convertible Debenture of Rs 100/- 
each in Oscar Software Private Limited

508,616 (Previous year 508,616) fully paid up Optionally Fully Convertible Debenture of Rs 100/- 
each in Approach Films and Television Limited

Considered doubtful
Less: Allowance  for bad and doubtful debts

Total

Total

Total

Considered good

Total



9. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Loans and advances to related parties 1,504,265                        1,397,364                            
Loans and advances to employees 2,279,688                        1,013,604                            
Loan and advance to Other 11,162,501                      4,884,396                            

14,946,454                      7,295,364                            

10.  OTHER CURRENT ASSETS Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Balances with government authorities 12,273,971                      23,114,416                         
Security Deposits 4,538,337                        4,538,337                            
Prepaid Expenses 681,363                           1,935,484                            

17,493,671                      29,588,237                         

Total

Total



11. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Authorised share capital
Equity Share Capital
30,000,000 (31st March, 2020: 30,000,000 ) equity shares of  Rs 10/- each 300,000,000                    300,000,000                       

Issued, subscribed and fully paid share capital
26,968,912 (31st March, 2020: 26,968,912 ) equity shares of  Rs 10/- each 269,689,120                    269,689,120                       

269,689,120                    269,689,120                       

Particulars
Number
of shares

held Amount

Number
of shares

held Amount
Equity share with Voting Rights
Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 26,968,912            269,689,120          26,968,912                       269,689,120                         
Add: Issue of Equity Shares during the year -                        -                         -                                    -                                       
Equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 26,968,912            269,689,120          26,968,912                       269,689,120                         

Name of Shareholders As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of Shares No. of Shares

B.A.G. Films & Media Limited 18,671,703                      18,671,703                         
Sameer Gehlaut 2,571,428                        2,571,428                            
High Growth Distributors Pvt Ltd. 2,571,428                        2,571,428                            

(iii) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

12. OTHER EQUITY Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
(a) Securities Premium Reserves 1,303,438,312                 1,303,438,312                    
(b) Capital Reserve 80,000,000                      80,000,000                         
(c')Retained earnings (606,493,712)                   (552,590,185)                      

776,944,600                    830,848,127                       

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of  Rs 2 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The 
dividend proposed , if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, 
except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the 
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(ii) Details of Equity shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Total

(i) The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below:

Total

(iv) The  company has not allotted any bonus shares or bought back any shares during the current year or for a period of five years immediately 
preceding the balance sheet date.

(v) The Company’s objective for capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and support the growth 
of the Company. The Company determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic 
investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity and operating cash flows generated. The Company is not subject to any 
externally imposed capital requirements.

a)  Securities Premium Account : Security Premium is created to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

b)  Retained earning : Retained earnings represent the accumulated earnings net of losses if any made by the Company over the years.



13.   OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Term Loans
      - From Bank 30,000,000                      50,000,000                         
Other borrowings (from entities other than Banks) 43,362,192                      43,362,192                         
Optionally fully convertible Debentures 157,005,000                    222,504,000                       

230,367,192                    315,866,192                       

-                                      
14. PROVISIONS Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Provision for Employee benefits
            - Gratuity 1,329,296                        1,644,880                            
           - Compensated absences 154,896                           222,376                               

1,484,192                        1,867,256                            

15.   TRADE PAYABLE Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Trade payables- micro and small enterprises -                                   -                                      
Trade payables 65,606,020                      61,115,483                         

65,606,020                      61,115,483                         
Notes:

16. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Secured
       Loans repayable on demand 180,445,020                    197,283,990                       

Unsecured Loans
       Loans from related parties -                                   53,053,788                         

180,445,020                    250,337,778                       

17. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Current maturities of long term debt 20,000,000                      15,000,000                         
Other payables
    Statutory Liabilities 845,237                           1,072,755                            
    Other Liabilities 28,948,605                      35,606,512                         
    Employee Cost 3,241,134                        4,590,774                            

53,034,976                      56,270,041                         

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises :
The balances above includes INR Nil (Previous Year Nil) due to Micro and Small Enterprises registered under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSME Act). No interest is paid / payable during the year to any Micro / Small Enterprise registered under 
the MSME. There were no delayed payments during the year to any Micro or Small Enterprise registered under the MSME Act. The above 
information has been determined to the extent such parties could be identified on the basis of the information available with the Management 
regarding the status of suppliers under the MSME Act.



18.  REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Revenue from Operations 
  Sale of Services 206,145,959                    224,168,930                       

206,145,959                    224,168,930                       

19. OTHER INCOME Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Interest Income
  Interest from banks on:
   -Bank deposit 2,048,292                        7,486,728                            
 -  Other Interest 1,539,770                        416,709                               

  Miscellaneous Income 195,105                           83,783                                 
403,921                           -                                      

4,187,088                        7,987,220                            

Amount in 
20. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS (INCLUDING STOCK-IN-TRADE) AND WORK-IN-PROGRES
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Opening inventories
Finished Goods 64,997,278                      62,499,078                           

Closing inventories
Finished Goods (64,740,492)                     (64,997,278)                         

256,786                           (2,498,200)                          

21. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Salaries, incentives, allowances and Bonus 16,482,722                      27,943,604                         
Contribution to Provident and other funds 634,256                           1,068,203                            
Staff welfare expenses 157,144                           137,260                               

17,274,122                      29,149,067                         

22.  FINANCE COSTS Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Interest expense on
      Borrowing 27,086,253                      32,720,722                         
Other borrowing costs
    Bank Charges 243                                  5,745                                   
   Processing Fees -                                   5,000                                   

27,086,496                      32,731,467                         

23. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 5) 4,771,104                        6,230,754                            
4,771,104                        6,230,754                            

Other Non-Operating Income 

Total

Total

Total

Total

  Liabilities and excess provision written back

Total



24. OTHER EXPENSES Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Operation and Other Expenses
Power and fuel 1,876,875                        2,355,765                            
Rent 9,927,361                        10,653,121                         
Repairs to machinery 300,157                           363,012                               
Insurance 5,028                               1,115,244                            
Rates and taxes 1,097,945                        3,319,946                            
Payment to auditors
    - As Auditor 125,000                           125,000                               
    - For Taxation Matters 50,000                             50,000                                 
Professional Charges Artist, Directors, Technicians 14,893,750                      25,437,992                         
Corporate Social Responsibilty Expenditure -                                   119,371                               
Royalty 110,378,916                    40,846,599                         
Uplinking Charges 7,050,000                        7,050,000                            
Carriage Fees 60,280,123                      92,504,567                         
Office Maintenance 2,734,200                        2,969,264                            
Miscellaneous Expenses 5,400,160                        4,796,591                            

214,119,515                    191,706,472                       



 
 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2021 
 
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 
The Company is running a 24 hours Entertainment channel in the name of “E24” . Modern, interactive, 
informative and passionate, the channel reports the glitz and glamour of Bollywood with honesty, zeal and 
commitment. Films, music, entertainment reviews, gossip, scoops and scandals- the channel features all such 
programmes in unique style and look. 
 
 
NOTE 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION, MEASUREMENT AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

2.1  Basis of Preparation and Measurement  

(a)   Basis of preparation  
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards  
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 as amended from time to time.  

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies 
are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets and liabilities 
have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other 
criteria as set out in the Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of 
products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash 
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or 
non-current classification of assets and liabilities.  

The financial statements are presented in INR, the functional currency of the Company. Items included in 
the financial statements of the Company are recorded using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates (the ‘functional currency’).  

Transactions and balances with values below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company have been  
reflected as “0” in the relevant notes to these financial statements.  

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020 were approved for issue in 
accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 29th June, 2021.  
 

(b) Basis of measurement  

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise indicated. 
 

2.2 Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make 
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application 
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the period. The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates 
involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have 
been discussed below. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the 
Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates 



 
 

are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their 
effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are in respect of 
impairment of investments, useful lives of property, plant and equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets 
and fair value measurement of financial instruments, these are discussed below. Key sources of estimation 
of uncertainty in respect of revenue recognition, employee benefits and provisions and contingent 
liabilities have been discussed in their respective policies. 

 
Impairment of investments in subsidiaries 
The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortised cost annually, or more 
frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying 
amount, the impairment loss is accounted for. 

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. 
This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods. 

Valuation of deferred tax assets 
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period.  

Fair value measurement of financial instruments 
When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be 
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques 
including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets 
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. 
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in 
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.  
 
Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 
The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 
on the carrying amounts of receivables, unbilled revenues and investment in subsidiaries. In developing 
the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of 
this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and 
external sources of information including credit reports and related information, economic forecasts. The 
Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on current estimates 
expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s 
financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements. 
 

2.3 Recent Accounting Developments 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards.  
 
MCA issued notifications dated 24th March, 2021 to amend Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 to 
enhance the disclosures required to be made by the Company in its financial statements. These 
amendments are applicable to the Company for the financial year starting 1st April, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

2.4 Significant Accounting Policies 
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all 
the years except where newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted. 

(a) Current versus non-current classification  
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non- current 
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:  

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle  
- Held primarily for purpose of trading  
- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
 - cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period  
All other assets are classified as non-current.  

        A liability is current when:  
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle  
- It is held primarily for purpose of trading  
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or  
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after 

the reporting period  

        All other liabilities are classified as non current. 
        Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are classified as non- current assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash 
and cash equivalents. the Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

 
(b) Leases 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration. 

Company as a lessee  
The Company’s lease asset classes primarily comprise of lease for land and building. The Company 
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if 
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the 
Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has 
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the 
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company applies a single recognition and 
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. For these 
short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on 
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease 
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets as below: 
 



 
 

i) Right-of-use assets  
The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease 
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any 
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement 
date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.  

ii) Lease Liabilities 
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease 
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using 
the incremental borrowing rates. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying 
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments 
made.  

A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in the lease term or 
a change in an index or rate used to determine lease payments. The remeasurement normally also adjusts 
the leased assets.  

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments 
have been classified as financing cash flows. 

 

Company as a lessor  
Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating lease. Leases in which the 
Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are 
classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease 
terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the 
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. 

 
(c) Property, plant and equipment 

Property, Plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if 
any. The cost comprises of purchase price, taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses directly 
attributable and related to acquisition and installation of the concerned assets and are further adjusted by 
the amount of input tax credit availed wherever applicable. 

Cost of acquisition or construction of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price 
including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebates, 
any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use. 

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment having significant cost have different useful lives, 
then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance cost are 
charged to the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which they are incurred. 

Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 



 
 

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are 
disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress”. 

Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under 
development as at the balance sheet date. 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet 
date is classified as capital advances under “Other Non-Current Assets”. 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on pro-rata basis on Written down value 
method using the useful lives of the assets estimated by management. 

Freehold land is not depreciated. 

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed 
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

(d) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets: 
Assessment for impairment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that a 
non-financial asset may be impaired. Indefinite life intangible assets are subject to a review for impairment 
annually or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that it is necessary. For the purpose of 
assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing 
use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets is considered as a 
cash generating unit. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated 
to each of the Company’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the 
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquire are assigned to those units. 
If any indication of impairment exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the individual asset/cash 
generating unit is made. Asset/cash generating unit whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable 
amount are written down to the recoverable amount by recognising the impairment loss as an expense in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.  
The impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if any) allocated to 
the cash generating unit and then to the other assets of the unit, pro rata based on the carrying amount of 
each asset in the unit. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s fair value less 
cost of disposal and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows 
expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset or cash generating unit and from its disposal at the 
end of its useful life discounted to their present value using a post-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value 
less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are considered. If no such transactions can be identified, 
an appropriate valuation model is used. 
Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an 
impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have 
decreased. Basis the assessment a reversal of an impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss account. 
 
(e) Financial instruments 
Financial Assets:  
Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.  

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value. In case of Financial assets which are 
recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is recognised in the statement 



 
 

of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost is attributed to the acquisition value of the financial 
asset.  

Financial assets are subsequently classified and measured at  
- amortised cost  
- fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)  
- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).  
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except during the period the Company 
changes its business model for managing financial assets. 

 
Trade Receivables and Loans:  
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at amortised 
cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the rate that 
discounts estimated future cash income through the expected life of financial instrument. 

 
Debt Instruments:  
Debt instruments are initially measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income 
(‘FVOCI’) or fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) till derecognition on the basis of (i) the Company’s 
business model for managing the financial assets and (ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the 
financial asset. 

 
i. Measured at amortised cost:  

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order 
to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the ‘EIR’ method less impairment, if any. The amortisation of EIR and 
loss arising from impairment, if any is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 
ii. Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):  

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling 
financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, 
are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements 
are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income measured using the EIR 
method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On 
derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to 
‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 
iii. Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):  

A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such financial 
assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend 
income if any, recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 
      Equity Instruments:  

 All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair value, 
the Company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL.  

The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity 
instrument is recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has 
elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an equity 
instrument measured at FVOCI are recognised in OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently 



 
 

reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments 
are recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 
Derivative Financial Instruments:  
The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and commodity risks. 
Derivatives are measured at fair value. The treatment of changes in the value of derivative depends on their 
use as explained below: 

 
Cash flow hedges:  
Derivatives are held to hedge the uncertainty in timing or amount of future forecast cash flows. Such 
derivatives are classified as being part of cash flow hedge relationships. For an effective hedge, gains and 
losses from changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised in other comprehensive income. Any 
ineffective elements of the hedge are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.  
If the hedged cash flow relates to a non-financial asset, the amount accumulated in equity is subsequently 
included within the carrying value of that asset. For other cash flow hedges, amounts accumulated in other 
comprehensive income are taken to the statement of profit and loss at the same time as the related cash 
flow. 
When a derivative no longer qualifies for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss remains in equity 
until the related cash flow occurs. When the cash flow takes place, the cumulative gain or loss is taken to the 
statement of profit and loss. If the hedged cash flow is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or 
loss is taken to the statement of profit and loss immediately. 

 
Derivatives for which hedge accounting is not applied  
Derivative financial instruments for which hedge accounting is not applied are initially recognised at fair 
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered and are subsequently measured at FVTPL.  

Derecognition  
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset. 

 
Offsetting Financial Instruments  
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet, if 
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle 
them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

 
Impairment of Financial Asset  
The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of loss allowance 
on the following:  

i. Trade receivables  
ii. Financial assets measured at amortised cost (other than trade receivables)  
iii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).  

 
In case of trade receivables, the Company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to 
lifetime ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance.  

In case of other assets (listed as ii and iii above), the Company determines if there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk of the financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not 
increased significantly, an amount equal to 12-month ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance. 



 
 

However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and 
recognised as loss allowance. 

 
Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognising impairment loss 
allowance based on 12-month ECL. 

 
ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the 
contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the 
original effective interest rate. 
 
Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life 
of a financial asset. 12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result from default events that are 
possible within 12 months from the reporting date. 

 
ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts determined by 
a range of outcomes, taking into account the time value of money and other reasonable information 
available as a result of past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. 

 
As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to measure lifetime ECL on its portfolio of 
trade receivables. The provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates over the 
expected life of trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At each reporting date, the 
historically observed default rates and changes in the forward-looking estimates are updated. 

 
ECL allowance recognised (or reversed) during the period is recognised as income/expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss under the head ‘Other expenses’. 

 
Write-off  
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable 
expectations of recovering the financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. 

 
Financial Liabilities:  
Initial recognition and measurement  
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition, they 
are classified as fair value through profit and loss. In case of trade payables, they are initially recognised at 
fair value and subsequently, these liabilities are held at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate 
method. 

 
Subsequent measurement  
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilities 
carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 
Derecognition  
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expires. The difference between the carrying value of the financial liability and the consideration paid is 
recognised in Statement of profit and loss. 

 



 
 

(f) Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures:  
Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures are carried at cost less accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed 
and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, 
associates and joint venture, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 
(g) Inventories:  
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is computed on a weighted average 
basis.  
Cost of raw materials and stores and spares includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. The aforesaid items are valued at net realisable value if the 
finished products in which they are to be incorporated are expected to be sold at a loss.  
 
Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress include all costs of purchases, conversion costs and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The net realisable value is the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and estimated 
costs necessary to make the sale. 
 
(h) Cash and Cash Equivalents:  
Cash and cash equivalents are cash, balances with bank and short-term (three months or less from the date of 
placement), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 
(i) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities:  
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured 
at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date.  

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its present value using 
a current pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the obligation. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time 
is recognised as a finance cost.  

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence 
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is 
either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate 
of the amount cannot be made. 

 
(j) Revenue Recognition 
Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ 
The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs (MCA) notified Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” related to revenue recognition 
which replaces all existing revenue recognition standards and provide a single, comprehensive model for all 
contracts with customers. The revised standard contains principles to determine the measurement of revenue 
and timing of when it is recognised. 



 
 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received 
or receivable All revenues are accounted on accrual basis except to the extent stated otherwise. 
 Revenue generated from the commissioned television programs and Internet series produced for 

broadcasters is recognized over the period of time over the contract period.  
 Rent income is recognised on accrual basis as per the agreed terms on straight line basis. 
 Sale of Rights are recognised in accordance with the terms of agreements with customers. 
 Revenue from other services is recognised as and when such services are completed / performed. 
 Income from infrastructure support, building rent and royalty income is recognised based on the terms 

of the underlying agreement. 
 Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective 

interest rate (EIR) applicable. 

 Revenue from subsidiaries is recognised based on transaction price which is at arm’s length. 
 

The transaction price, being the amount to which the Company expects to be entitled and has rights to 
under the contract is allocated to the identified performance obligations. The transaction price will also 
include an estimate of any variable consideration where the Company’s performance may result in 
additional revenues based on the achievement of agreed targets. 

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised 
goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the 
group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.  

Revenue excludes any taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government. 

 
(k) Expenditure:  

Expenses are accounted on accrual basis. 
(l) Employee benefits 

 
Short-Term Employee Benefits  
Short-term employee benefits including salaries and performance incentives, are charged to statement of 
profit and loss on an undiscounted, accrual basis during the period of employment. 

 
Defined contribution plans  
Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as employees’ state insurance, labour welfare fund, 
superannuation scheme, employee pension scheme etc. are charged as an expense based on the amount of 
contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees. Company’s 
provident fund contribution, in respect of certain employees, is made to a Government administered fund 
and charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The above benefits are classified as Defined 
Contribution Schemes as the Company has no further defined obligations beyond the monthly contributions. 

 
Defined benefit plans  
In respect of certain employees, provident fund contributions are made to a trust administered by the 
Company. The interest rate payable to the members of the trust shall not be lower than the statutory rate of 
interest declared by the Central Government under the Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous 
Provisions Act, 1952 and shortfall, if any, shall be made good by the Company. The liability in respect of the 
shortfall of interest earnings of the Fund is determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation. The Company 



 
 

also provides for retirement/post-retirement benefits in the form of gratuity, pensions (in respect of certain 
employees), compensated absences (in respect of certain employees) and medical benefits (in respect of 
certain employees) including to the employees of group companies.  

For defined benefit plans, the amount recognised as ‘Employee benefit expenses’ in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss is the cost of accruing employee benefits promised to employees over the year and the costs of 
individual events such as past/future service benefit changes and settlements (such events are recognised 
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss). The amount of net interest expense calculated by applying 
the liability discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset is charged or credited to ‘Finance costs’ 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any differences between the expected interest income on plan assets and 
the return actually achieved, and any changes in the liabilities over the year due to changes in actuarial 
assumptions or experience adjustments within the plans, are recognised immediately in ‘Other 
comprehensive income’ and subsequently not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.  

The defined benefit plan surplus or deficit on the Balance Sheet date comprises fair value of plan assets less 
the present value of the defined benefit liabilities using a discount rate by reference to market yields on 
Government bonds at the end of the reporting period.  

All defined benefit plans obligations are determined based on valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date, made 
by independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The classification of the Company’s net 
obligation into current and non-current is as per the actuarial valuation report. 

 
Termination benefits  
Termination benefits, in the nature of voluntary retirement benefits or termination benefits arising from 
restructuring, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company recognises termination 
benefits at the earlier of the following dates:  

(a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; or  

 (b) when the Company recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of Ind AS 37: Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and involves the payment of termination benefits.  

Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to their present 
value. 

 
Share-Based Payments  
Employees of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments in consideration of 
the services rendered. Under the equity settled share based payment, the fair value on the grant date of the 
awards given to employees is recognised as ‘employee benefit expenses’ with a corresponding increase in 
equity over the vesting period. The fair value of the options at the grant date is calculated by an independent 
valuer basis Black Scholes model. At the end of each reporting period, apart from the non-market vesting 
condition, the expense is reviewed and adjusted to reflect changes to the level of options expected to vest. 
When the options are exercised, the Company issues fresh equity shares.  

For cash-settled share-based payments, the fair value of the amount payable to employees is recognised as 
‘employee benefit expenses’ with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period of non-market 
vesting conditions getting fulfilled. The liability is remeasured at each reporting period up to, and including 
the settlement date, with changes in fair value recognised in employee benefits expenses. 

 
 
 



 
 

(m) Income Taxes:  
Income tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to a business combination or to an item which is recognised 
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.  

Current tax is the expected tax payable/ receivable on the taxable income/ loss for the year using applicable 
tax rates for the relevant period, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years. Interest expenses 
and penalties, if any, related to income tax are included in finance cost and other expenses respectively. 
Interest Income, if any, related to Income tax is included in Other Income.  

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.  

A deferred tax liability is recognised based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the 
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end of the 
reporting period. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each 
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be 
realised.  

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax 
assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to 
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.  

 
 
Uncertain Tax Position  
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which 
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. The 
provision is estimated based on one of two methods, the expected value method (the sum of the probability 
weighted amounts in a range of possible outcomes) or the single most likely amount method, depending on 
which is expected to better predict the resolution of the uncertainty. 

 
(n) Foreign Currencies:  

1. Functional and presentation currency 
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The Company’s 
financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR) which is also the Company’s functional        
and presentation currency. 

2. Transactions and balances 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate 
prevailing at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the 
settlement of such transaction and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rate are generally recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items 
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date 
when the fair value is determined. 



 
 

3. Exchange differences 
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized as 
income or expense in the period in which they arise with the exception of exchange differences on 
gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value which is treated in 
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation 
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also 
recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively). 
 

(o) Earnings Per Share:  
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all 
periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential 
equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding 
change in resources.  

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is 
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
 

(p) Business Combination:  
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition accounting method as at the date of the 
acquisition, which is the date at which control is transferred to the Company. 
 
The consideration transferred in the acquisition and the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed are recognised at fair values on their acquisition date. Goodwill is initially measured at cost, 
being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed. The Company recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an 
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate 
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets. 
 
Consideration transferred does not include amounts related to settlement of pre-existing relationships. 
Such amounts are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.  

Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, other than those incurred in relation to the issue of debt or 
equity securities. Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition 
date. Subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent consideration are recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 
 

(q) Borrowings and Borrowing costs 
Borrowing  cost includes interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds 
and charged to Statement of Profit & Loss on the basis of effective interest rate (EIR) method. 
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the 
borrowing cost. 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that 
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as 
part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the 
period in which they occur. 
 



 
 

(r) Dividend Distributions 
The Company recognizes a liability to make the payment of dividend to owners of equity, when the 
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the 
corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A 
corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity. 
 

(s)  Segment reporting 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the 
chief operating decision maker. The Board of directors monitors the operating results of all product 
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance 
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit and loss and is measured consistently 
with profit and loss in the financial statements. 
 
The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. Further: 
1. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to the 

segment including inter - segment revenue. 
2. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining 

the segment result. Expenses which relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments 
are included under unallocable expenditure. 

3. Income which relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in 
unallocable income. 

4. Segment results includes margins on intersegment sales which are reduced in arriving at the profit 
before tax of the Company. 

5. Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments. 
Unallocable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Company as 
a whole and not allocable to any segment. 

6. Segment revenue resulting from transactions with other business segments is accounted on the 
basis of transfer price agreed between the segments. Such transfer prices are either determined to 
yield a desired margin or agreed on a negotiated business. 
 

(t) Exceptional Items 
Exceptional items are transactions which due to their size or incidence are separately disclosed to 
enable a full understanding of the Company’s financial performance. Items which may be considered 
exceptional are significant restructuring charges, gains or losses on disposal of investments in 
subsidiaries, associates and joint venture and impairment losses/ write down in value of investment in 
subsidiaries, associates and joint venture and significant disposal of fixed assets etc. 

 
(u) Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based 
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

(i) In the principal market for asset or liability, or 

(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.  



 
 

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best 
interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non- financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.  

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 
 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
 
Level 1- Quoted(unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or    indirectly observable 

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable 
 
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorization ( based on the lowest level input that is significant to fair value measurement as a whole 
) at the end of each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities 
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value 
hierarchy as explained above. 
 

(v) Standards issued but not effective 
There are no standards that are issued but not yet effective on March 31, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

25. Employee Benefits 
Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS - 19 “Employee Benefits” (notified under the section 133 of the Companies 
Act 2013 (the Act) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule 2015 (as amended from time 
to time) and other relevant provision of the Act) are given below : 
Post-employment Obligation 
Gratuity 
The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The 
employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of 
gratuity payable on retirement / termination is the employee’s last drawn basic salary per month 
computed proportionately for 15 day’s salary multiplied with the number of years of service. The gratuity 
plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to recognised funds in India. The Company 
does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of 
time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments. As the estimated payout in next 12 months, 
from the balance sheet date, for the defined benefit obligation is less that the fair value of plan assets, 
hence, the net liability has been considered as non-current. 
Defined Contribution Plans 
The Company has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund, and 
employee’s state insurance scheme for employees as per regulations. The contributions are made to 
registered funds administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount 
contributed and it has no further contractual or any constructive obligation. 

        Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan recognised as expense for the year is as under:  

     Defined Benefit Plans: 
The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit  Credit 
method, which  recognises each year of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit 
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation for leave 
encashment is recognised using the Project Unit Credit Method.  
a. Change in present value of obligation 

                                                                             Mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm                   (Amount in ) 
Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment 

March31,2021 March31,2020 March31,2021 March31,2020 
Present value of obligation as  at the 
beginning of the period                               

1,644,880 1,356,898 222,376 224,720 

Current Service Cost 181,741 306,667 18,536 37,146 
Interest Cost 111,194 103,938 15,033 17,214 
Expected Return on Plan Assets -- -- -- -- 
Benefits paid (451,096) -- -- -- 
Actuarial (gain)/loss (157,423) (122,623) (101,049) (56,704) 
Past Service Cost -- -- -- -- 
Curtailment and settlement 
Cost/(credit) 

-- -- -- -- 

Present value of obligation as  at the 
end of the period                              

1,329,296 1,644,880 154,896 222,376 

 
                                               

           Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund:      Rs. 401,328 
                                                                              (Previous Year Rs. 898,894 ) 
            Employer’s Contribution to ESI :                         Rs. 64,255 
                                                                                  (Previous Year Rs. 101,950 ) 

  



 
 

b.  Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss account                                                (Amount in )                      
Particulars 

 
Gratuity Leave Encashment 

March31,2021 March31,2020 March31,2021 March31,2020 
Current service cost                   181,741 306,667 18,536 37,146 
Past service cost                         -- -- -- -- 
Interest cost                     111,194 103,938 15,033 17,214 
Expected return on plan assets -- -- -- -- 
Curtailment cost / (Credit) -- -- -- -- 
Settlement cost / (credit) -- -- -- -- 
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in 
the period 

(157,423) (122,623) (101,049) (56,704) 

Expenses recognized in the statement 
of profit & losses 

135,512 287,982 (67,480) (2,344) 

 
c. Actuarial gain/loss recognized                                                                                                             (Amount in )                                                                                  

Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment 
March31,2021 March31,2020 March31,2021 March31,2020 

Actuarial gain/(loss) for the period – 
obligation 

157,423 122,623 101,049   56,704 

Actuarial gain/(loss) for the period - plan 
assets 

-- -- -- -- 

Total (gain)/loss for the period (157,423) (122,623) (101,049) (56,704) 
Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the 
period 

(157,423) (122,623) (101,049) (56,704) 

Unrecognized actuarial (gains) losses at 
the end of period 

-- -- -- -- 

 
 

d. The amounts to be recognized in balance sheet and related analysis                                     (Amount in ) 
Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment 

March31,2021 March31,2020 March31,2021 March31,2020 
Present value of obligation as at the end 
of the period   

1,329,296 1,644,880 154,896 222,376 

Fair value of plan assets as at the end 
of the period                         

-- -- -- -- 

Funded status / Difference                      (1,329,296) (1,644,880) (154,896) (222,376) 
Excess of actual over estimated -- -- -- -- 
Unrecognized actuarial (gains)/losses -- -- -- -- 
Net asset/(liability) recognized in 
balance sheet 

(1,329,296) (1,644,880) (154,896) (222,376) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

e. Actuarial Assumptions 
i)  Economic Assumptions  
The principal assumptions are the discount rate & salary growth rate. The discount rate is generally based 
upon the market yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches 
that of the liabilities & the salary growth rate takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other 
relevant factors on long term basis. Valuation assumptions are as follows which have been agreed by the 
company: 
          

                                                      (Amount in ) 
Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment 

March31,2021 March31,2020 March31,2021 March31,2020 
Discount Rate (%) 6.76 6.76 6.76 6.76 
Expected Rate of increase in Compensation 
Levels (%) 

5.50 5.50 5.50 5.50 

Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets -- -- -- -- 
Expected Average remaining working lives 
of employees (years) 

23.33 23.86 23.33 23.86 

ii) Demographic Assumption  
                                                   (Amount in ) 

Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment 
March31,2021 March31,2020 March31,2021 March31,2019 

  i)  Retirement Age  (Years) 60 60 60 60 
 ii)  Mortality Table IALM(2006-08) IALM(2006-08) IALM(2006-08) IALM(2006-08) 
iii)  Ages     
       Up to 30 Years         3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 
       From 31 to 44 years         2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 
       Above 44 years        1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 
 
Short term employee benefits 
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the services are classified as short-
term employees benefits. Benefits such as salaries , wages and bonus, etc., are recognized in the statement of 
Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service. 
   
Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 
Termination benefits 
Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Sensitivity Analysis of the defined benefit obligation. 
 
 Gratuity Leave 

Encashment 
a) Impact of the change in discount rate 
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 1,329,296 154,896 
Impact due to increase of  0.50% (105,582) (12,686) 
Impact due to decrease of  0.50 % 117,467 13,731 
b) Impact of the change in salary increase 
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 1,329,296 154,896 
Impact due to increase of  0.50% 118,354 13,953 
Impact due to decrease of  0.50 % (107,264) (12,655) 
 
 

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions 
constant. In practice this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. 
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the 
same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit 
method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability 
recognised in the Balance sheet. 

 
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analyses did not change compared    
to previous period. 

Notes: 
 

a) The current service cost recognised as an expense is included in Note 21 ‘Employee benefits expense’ as 
gratuity. The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive 
income. 

 
b) The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, 

seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. 
The above information is certified by the Actuary. 

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, 
expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on 
reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, 
while holding all other assumptions constant. 

c) The obligation for leave benefits (non funded) is also recognised using the Projected Unit Credit Method 
and accordingly the long term paid absences have been valued. The leave encashment expense is included 
in Note 21 ‘Employee benefits expense’. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

26.  Related party transactions 
The related parties as per the terms of Ind AS-24,”Related Party Disclosures”, ( under the section 133 of the 
Companies Act 2013 (the Act) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (as amended 
from time to time), as disclosed below:- 
 
Name of related parties and description of relationship 
 
Name Relationship 

B.A.G. Films and  Media Limited Holding Company 

E24 Entertainment Limited Foreign Subsidiary 
Anuradha Prasad Shukla Key Managerial Personnel 

ARVR Communications Pvt. Ltd.  Enterprises over which KMP are able to exercise significant 
influence 

News24 Broadcast India Limited Enterprises over which KMP/Director are able to exercise 
significant influence 

Skyline Radio Network Limited 
 

Enterprises over which KMP/Director are able to exercise 
significant influence 

B.A.G Live Entertainment Limited Enterprises over which KMP are able to exercise significant 
influence 

Skyline Tele Media Services Limited Enterprises over which KMP are able to exercise significant 
influence 

 
 
 Details of Transactions during the year and balances at the year end             (Amount in ) 

Particulars Holding Company Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMP) 

Enterprises over which 
KMP are able to exercise 

significant influence 
  For Year Ended  

March 31, 
For Year Ended 

March 31, 
For Year Ended  

March 31, 
  2021 2020 2021 2019 2021 2020 

Lease rental on Equipments 5,673,365 6,189,120 -- --   

Income from Ad Sale -- -- -- -- 85,220,000 58,476,330 

Income From commisioned 
Serial/Programmes 

-- -- -- -- -- -- 

Office Rent 4,254,000 4,464,000 -- -- -- -- 

Expenses Reimbursed 6,552,314 7,456,000 -- -- 7,050,000 7,050,000 

Advertisement Expenses -- -- -- -- 85,231,000 20,675,680 

Carriage Fees 50,344,639 46,048,079 -- -- -- -- 

  
Note 
1. The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length 

transactions. 
2. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the 

year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to 



 
 

amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining 
the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. 

3. All the liabilities for post retirement benefits being ‘Gratuity’ are provided on actuarial basis for the 
Company as a whole, accordingly the amount pertaining to Key management personnel are not included 
above. 

 
27.  EARNING PER SHARE                           (Amount in ) 

Particulars For the year ended 
 2020-21 2019-20 
Profit for the year (53,903,527) (26,470,828) 
Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for 
calculating Basic EPS 

26,968,912 26,968,912 

Basic Earnings per share (2.00) (0.98) 
Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for 
calculating Diluted EPS 

46,729,601 53,555,531 

Diluted Earnings per share (2.00) (0.98) 
Face Value per equity share 10 10 

 
 

 
28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
a) Fair Value Measurements 

Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the 
most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability 
reflects its non-performance risk. The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial 
recognition is normally the transaction price – i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. 

 
b) Categories of financial instruments and fair value thereof               (Amount in ) 

 March 31,2021 March 31,2020 
Carrying amount Fair Value Carrying amount Fair Value 

a)  Financial assets 
i) Measured at amortised cost 
Trade receivables 71,090,019 71,090,019 101,363,571 101,363,571 
Cash and cash equivalents 8,418,276 8,418,276 176,522,942 176,522,942 
Other financial assets 14,946,454 14,946,454 7,295,364 7,295,364 
Investments 1,384,694,420 1,384,694,420 1,384,694,420 1,384,694,420 
     
b) Financial liabilities 
i) Measured at amortised cost 
Trade payables 65,606,020 65,606,020 38,414,786 38,414,786 
Other financial liabilities 410,812,212 410,812,212 600,531,114 600,531,114 
 
* Includes current maturities of long term borrowings. 
  The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be 

exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. 
   Financial instruments measured at amortised cost. 



 
 

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial    
statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values since the Company does not anticipate that 
the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or 
settled. 
The carrying value of current trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, current loans, trade payables    
and other financial assets and liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their short 
term nature. 
 

c) Financial Risk Management objectives and policies 
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. 
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s 
principal financial assets include investments, loans, trade and other receivables and cash and cash 
equivalents that derive directly from its operations. 
The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management 
oversees the management of these risks. 
 

i. Credit risk management 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty fails to meet its 
contractual obligations and arises principally from the Company’s receivables, deposits given, loans 
given, investments made and balances at bank.  
The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from investments made, loans 
given and trade receivables. 
In case of trade receivables, the Company does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to 
cover its credit risks. Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approvals, 
establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the 
Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the 
Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. 
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the average credit period is 90 days. The Company’s 
exposure to customers is diversified and no customer contributes to more than 10% of outstanding trade 
receivables and unbilled revenue. 
The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure: 

 March 31,2021 March 31,2020 
Trade Receivable (Unsecured) 
- Over six months - - 
-Less than six months 71,090,019 101,363,571 
Total 71,090,019 101,363,571 

Trade receivable consists of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and    
geographical areas. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of the accounts  
receivable. 
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks 
and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by credit-rating agencies. The credit risk on 
optionally fully convertible debentures and deposit is limited because the couter parties are generally banks 
and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by credit rating agencies. 
 
 



 
 

 
ii. Liquidity risk management 

The responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of directors, which has an appropriate 
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short-, medium- and long 
term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by 
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities by regularly monitoring forecast and actual cash flows. 
Maturities of financial liabilities 
The tables below analyze the company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on their 
contractual maturities.                       (Amount in ) 

 Due in 
1st year 

Due in 
2 to 5th year 

Due after 5 
years 

Total 

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities 
March 31, 2021 
Trade payables and other financial 
liabilities 

65,606,020 -- -- 65,606,020 

Borrowings 200,445,020 230,367,192 -- 430,812,212 
 

 Due in 
1st year 

Due in 
2 to 5th year 

Due after 5 
years 

Total 

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities 
March 31, 2020 
Trade payables and other financial 
liabilities 

61,115,483 -- -- 61,115,483 

Borrowings 212,283,990 315,866,192 -- 528,150,182 
 
 

iii. Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and 
other price risk such as equity price risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control 
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. 

a. Foreign currency risk exposure: 
The Company does not have any exposure to foreign currency risk as at March 31, 2020 (Previous 
year Nil). 
 

b. Interest rate risk 
The Company does not have any borrowings and is thus not exposed to interest rate risk as at 
March 31, 2020 (Previous year Nil). 
 

c. Other price risk 
The Company is exposed to equity price risks arising from equity investments. The Company’s 
equity investments are held for strategic rather than trading purposes. 
 

d. Equity price sensitivity analysis 
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to equity price risks at 
the end of the reporting period. 

 
 



 
 

 
29. CAPTAL MANAGEMENT 

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to 
- Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for 
   shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and 
- Maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor,     
creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. 

 
The company considers the following components of its balance sheet to be managed capital: 
Total equity as shown in the balance sheet including reserves, retained earnings and share capital. In order 
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to 
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. 

 
30. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified to be comparable with currents year’s 

classification/disclosures. 
 

 
For Kumar Khare & Co.           For and on the behalf of Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 006740C 

 
 
 
 
 

Alok Khare                  Anuradha Prasad Shukla                    Anil Kapoor           
Partner                                                                       (Director)                                         (Whole Time Director) 
Membership No. 075236        DIN :  00010716                          DIN  : 05113976 
     
         

       
 
 
                                           Subodh Kumar   Pinki Pilani 

Place: Noida                                                          Chief Financial Officer                          Company Secretary 
Date: June 29, 2021 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
to the Members of E24 Glamour Limited 
 
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 
Opinion 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of E24 Glamour Limited (hereinafter referred to 
as the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together 
referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the 
consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated 
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and 
based on the consideration of reports of other auditor on separate financial statements of a subsidiary as 
was audited by the other auditor, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs 
of the Group as at 31 March 2021, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, 
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’), and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Act. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
 
Revenue recognition- Rebates and Discounts 
The key audit matter 
As disclosed in consolidated financial statements, revenue is measured net of any trade discounts and 
volume rebates. 

Material estimation by the Group is involved in recognition and measurement of rebates and discounts. 
This includes establishing an accrual at year end, particularly in arrangements with varying terms which 
are based on annual contracts or shorter-term arrangements. In addition, the value and timing of 
promotions for products varies from period to period, and the activity can span beyond the year end. 

There is a risk of revenue being overstated due to fraud, including through manipulation of rebates and 
discounts, resulting from pressure the Group may feel to achieve performance targets at the reporting 
period end. 

We identified the evaluation of accrual for rebates and discounts as a key audit matter. 
 
How the matter was addressed in our audit 
Our audit procedures included: 

• Evaluating the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of Group’s general IT controls, 
key manual and application controls over the Group’s IT systems. They cover controls over 
computation of discounts and rebates and rebate and discount accruals; 

• Inspecting on a sample basis, key customer contracts. Based on the terms and conditions relating to 
rebates and discounts, we assessed the Group’s revenue recognition policies with reference to the 
requirements of the applicable accounting standards; 

• Performing substantive testing by selecting samples of rebate and discount transactions recorded 
during the year and matching the parameters used in the computation with the relevant source 
documents; 

• Understanding the process followed by the Group to determine the amount of accrual of rebates 
and discounts. Testing samples of rebate accruals and comparing to underlying documentation; 

• Testing actualisation of estimated accruals on a sample basis; 
• Examining historical rebate accrual together with our understanding of current year developments 

to form an expectation of the rebate accrual at period end. We compared this expectation against the 
actual rebate accrual, completing further inquiries and obtaining underlying documentation, on a 
sample basis, as appropriate. Further, we also performed retrospective review to evaluate the 
precision with which management makes estimates. 

• Critically assessing manual journal entries posted to revenue, on a sample basis, to identify unusual 
items; 

• Checking completeness and accuracy of the data used by the Group for accrual of rebates and 
discounts. 

• Testing a selection of rebate accruals recorded after 31 March 2021 and assessing whether the accrual 
is recorded in the correct period 

• Testing a selection of payments made after 31 March 2021 and where relevant, comparing the 
payment to the related rebate accrual 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Provision and contingent liabilities relating to taxation, litigations and claims 
The key audit matter 
The provisions and contingent liabilities relate to ongoing litigations and claims with various authorities 
and third parties. These relate to direct tax, indirect tax, transfer pricing arrangements, claims, general 
legal proceedings, environmental issues and other eventualities arising in the regular course of business. 

As at the year ended 31 March 2021, the amounts involved are significant. The computation of a 
provision or contingent liability requires significant judgement by the Group because of the inherent 
complexity in estimating future costs. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the 
expenditure. The provisions and contingent liabilities are subject to changes in the outcomes of 
litigations and claims and the positions taken by the Group. It involves significant judgement and 
estimation to determine the likelihood and timing of the cash outflows and interpretations of the legal 
aspects, tax legislations and judgements previously made by authorities. 
 
How the matter was addressed in our audit 
Our audit procedures included: 

• Evaluating the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal controls around 
the recognition and measurement of provisions and re-assessment of development of contingent 
liabilities; 

• Involving our tax professionals with specialised skills and knowledge to assist in the assessment of 
the value of significant provisions and contingent liabilities relating to taxation matter, on sample 
basis, in light of the nature of the exposures, applicable regulations and related correspondence with 
the authorities; 

• Inquiring the status in respect of significant provisions and contingent liabilities with the Group’s 
internal tax and legal team. We challenged the assumptions and critical judgements made by the 
Group which impacted the computation of the provisions and inspected the computation. We 
assessed the assumptions used and estimates of outcome and financial effect. We considered 
judgement of the Group, supplemented by experience of similar decisions previously made by the 
authorities and, in some cases, relevant opinions given by the Group’s advisors; 

• Evaluating judgements made by the Group by comparing the estimates of prior year to the actual 
outcome; 

• Assessing the Group’s disclosures in the financial statements in respect of provisions and contingent 
liabilities. 

• Testing data used to develop the estimate for completeness and accuracy. 
 

Other Information 
The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. 
The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s annual report, but 
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our Auditors’ Report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done/ audit 
report of other auditor, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements  
The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a 
true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/loss and other comprehensive 
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 



Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of 
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each 
company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the 
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding 
Company, as aforesaid. 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management and Board of Directors of 
the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group is responsible for overseeing 
the financial reporting process of each company. 
 
 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors’ 
Report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.  
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 
  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the entity has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls based on our audit. 
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in 
preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future 



events or conditions may cause the Group (Holding company and subsidiaries) to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 
 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  
 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or 
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements, 
of which we are the independent auditors. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the audit of financial information of such entities included in the consolidated 
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. We remain solely responsible for our 
audit opinion.  

 
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.  
 
We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and 
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our Auditors’ Report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  
 
A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements. 
 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books. 

 
c) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other 

comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated 
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

 
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 

under Section 133 of the Act. 
 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company 
and its subsidiaries which are incorporated in India, as on 31 March 2019 and taken on record by 
the Board of Directors of respective companies, none of the directors of the Group companies 



incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

 
f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A’’. 

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 
2021 on the consolidated financial position of the Group. 

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India 
during the year ended 31 March 2021. 
 

iv. The disclosures in the consolidated financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealing in 
specified banks notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not 
been made in the consolidated financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year 
ended 31 March 2021. 
 

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ report under Section 197(16) of the Act : 
 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the remuneration paid 
during the current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are incorporated in 
India is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any 
director by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are incorporated in India, is not in 
excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not 
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon 
by us. 

 
 
 

         For Kumar Khare & Co. 
  Chartered Accountants 

          Firm Registration No. 006740C
          UDIN: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                  Alok Khare 
Place: Noida             Partner    
Date: June 29, 2021                    Membership No.075236 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Annexure A to the Independent Consolidated Auditors' Report 
to the Independent Auditors' report on the consolidated financial statements of E24 Glamour 
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021 
 
Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013 
 
(Referred to in paragraph A (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section 
of our report to the E24 Glamour Limited of even date) 
 
Opinion 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of E24 Glamour Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2021, we have 
audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding 
Company and such companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 which are its 
subsidiary companies, as of that date. 

In our opinion, the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its 
subsidiary companies have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 
March 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 
criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of such internal controls 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”). 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The respective Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the 
criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”). 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to consolidated financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. 
 



Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of the internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the Auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 
 
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention 
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 
 
 

   For KUMAR  KHARE & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

                               Firm Registration Number: 006740C 
                UDIN:20075236AAAAAU2999 
 
 
 
 
 
        

               Alok Khare 
Place: Noida            Partner                                       
Date: June 29, 2021                                Membership No.075236 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



E24 GLAMOUR LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
As at March 31, 2021 Amount in 

Particulars Note No.
  As at 

March 31,2021 
  As at 

March 31,2020 

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 16,094,092                     20,845,450                     
Investment in subsidiaries 4 -                                 -                                 
Financial assets
       Investments 4 1,325,699,420                1,325,699,420                
Deferred Tax balances 5 93,696                           686,735                          

1,341,887,208                1,347,231,605                

Current assets
Inventories 6 64,740,492                     64,997,278                     
Financial assets
       Trade receivables 7 71,090,019                     101,363,571                   
       Cash and cash equivalents 8 8,418,276                      176,524,658                   
        Other financial assets 9 13,586,788                     5,933,982                       
Other current assets 10 17,493,671                     29,588,237                     

175,329,246                   378,407,726                   
Total 1,517,216,454                1,725,639,331                

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Kumar Khare & Co. Anil  Kapoor
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 006740C   DIN: 05113976

Alok Khare Pinki Pilani
Partner   Company Secretary
Membership Number: 075236
UDIN:
Place:Noida
Date:June 29, 2021

Anuradha Prasad Shukla
                  Director                               Whole Time  Director 

DIN: 00010716

Subodh Kumar
Chief Finacial Officer



Balance Sheet (Contd.)

Amount in 

Particulars
Note 
No.

  As at 
March 31,2021 

  As at 
March 31,2020 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 
Equity share capital 11 269,689,120                    269,689,120                      
Other equity 12 716,589,934                    770,493,461                      

986,279,054                    1,040,182,581                   

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
         Other financial liabilties 13 230,367,192                    315,866,192                      
Provisions 14 1,484,192                        1,867,256                         

231,851,384                    317,733,448                      

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
         Trade payables
            Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 15 -                                   -                                    
            Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 15                        65,606,020                         61,115,483 
                 and small enterprises
           Other financial liabilities 16 180,445,020                    250,337,778                      
Other current liabilities 17 53,034,976                      56,270,041                        

299,086,016                    367,723,302                      
Total 1,517,216,454                 1,725,639,331                   

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Kumar Khare & Co. Anil  Kapoor
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 006740C   DIN: 05113976

Alok Khare Pinki Pilani
Partner   Company Secretary
Membership Number: 075236
UDIN:
Place:Noida
Date:June 29, 2021

Chief Finacial Officer

Anuradha Prasad Shukla
                  Director                               Whole Time  Director 

DIN: 00010716

Subodh Kumar



STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Particulars Note No.
 Year ended

 March 31,2021 
 Year ended

 March 31,2020 

Sales 18 206,145,959                        224,168,930                   
Other income 19 4,187,088                            7,987,220                       
Total Income 210,333,047                        232,156,150                   

Expenses
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded 
goods 20 256,786                               (2,498,200)                      
Employee benefits expense 21 17,274,122                          29,149,067                     
Finance costs 22 27,086,496                          32,731,467                     
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 4,771,104                            6,230,754                       
Other expenses 24 214,119,515                        250,701,472                   
Total Expenses 263,508,023                        316,314,560                   

Profit before tax (53,174,976)                        (84,158,410)                    

Tax expense
        Deferred tax 593,039                               867,271                          
Total tax expense 593,039                               867,271                          

Profit for the year (A) (53,768,015)                        (85,025,681)                    

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
          Acturial gains/losses of defined benefit plans (135,512)                              (285,638)                         
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (135,512)                              (285,638)                         

Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) (53,903,527)                        (85,311,319)                    
Nominal value per share Rs.10/- each
Earnings per equity share
Basic earnings from operations attributable to share holders (2.00)                                    (0.98)                               
Diluted earnings from operations attributable to share holders (2.00)                                    (0.98)                               

Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 2
The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Kumar Khare & Co. Anil  Kapoor
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 006740C DIN No. 00010716   DIN: 05113976

Alok Khare Pinki Pilani
Partner   Company Secretary
Membership Number: 075236
UDIN:
Place:Noida
Date:June 29, 2021

Anuradha Prasad Shukla
                          Director                  Whole Time  Director 

Subodh Kumar
Chief Finacial Officer



(Formerly Known as  B.A.G Glamour Limited)

Amount in Amount in Amount in Amount in 
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (53,310,488)                    (84,444,048)                    
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 4,771,104                            6,230,754                          
Finance costs 27,086,496                          32,731,467                        
Interest income (3,588,062)                          (7,903,437)                        
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back (366,214)                             55,780                               
Other non-cash charges 
   Adjustment Relating to earlier year -                                      (154,509)                           

27,903,324                     30,960,055                      
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes
Movements in working capital:

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories 256,786                               (2,498,200)                        
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables 30,273,579                          35,704,542                        
(Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets (7,652,806)                          75,450,381                        
(Increase) / Decrease in other current asset 12,094,566                          44,658                               

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables 4,856,751                            22,644,917                        
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities (3,235,092)                          8,411,458                          
Increase / (Decrease) in  other financial liabilities (69,892,758)                        (14,327,145)                      
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions (383,064)                             285,638                             

(33,682,038)                    125,716,249                    

Cash generated from operations (59,089,202)                    72,232,256                      
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) (59,089,202)                    72,232,256                      
B. Cash flow from investing activities

(19,746)                               -                                    
Purchase of long-term investments

  - Others -                                      35,450,300                        
Interest received

  - Others 3,588,062                            7,903,437                          
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) 3,568,316                       43,353,737                      

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of  other financial liabilities (85,499,000)                        (20,000,000)                      
Interest received (finance income) (27,086,496)                        (112,585,496)                  (32,731,467)                      (52,731,467)                    

Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) (112,585,496)                  (52,731,467)                    

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (168,106,382)                  62,854,526                      
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 176,524,658                   113,670,132                    
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8,418,276                       176,524,658                    

Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet 8,418,276                       176,524,658                    
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year * 8,418,276                       176,524,658                    

This is the Statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Kumar Khare & Co. Anurradha Prasad Shukla Anil  Kapoor
Firm Registration Number: 006740C      Director Whole Time Director
Chartered Accountants DIN No. 00010716   DIN: 05113976

Alok Khare Subodh Kumar Pinki Pialni
Partner Chief finacial officer   Company Secretary
Membership Number: 075236
UDIN:
Noida: June 29, 2021

For the Year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Payment for Purchase of Property, plant and Equipment (PP&E)

Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the Balance 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the Year ended March 31, 2021

Note: The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows’.

Particulars



3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

 Description of Assets 
 Plant & 

Equipment 
 Computers & 

Peripherals 
 Furnitures & 

Fixtures  Office Equipments  Total 
Gross Block

Balance as at 1st April, 2019 140,003,710    63,432,126              2,964,645                 6,087,991                     212,488,472             
Additions -                   -                          -                           -                               -                           
Disposal -                   -                          -                           -                               -                           

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 140,003,710    63,432,126              2,964,645                 6,087,991                     212,488,472             
Additions -                   -                          -                           19,746                          19,746                      
Disposal -                   -                          -                           -                               -                           

Balance as at 31st March, 2021 140,003,710    63,432,126              2,964,645                 6,107,737                     212,508,218             
Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 1st April, 2019 113,260,304    63,427,120              2,944,055                 5,780,791                     185,412,270             
Additions 6,077,161        5,006                      10,123                      138,462                        6,230,753                 
Disposal -                   -                          -                           -                               -                           

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 119,337,465    63,432,126              2,954,179                 5,919,253                     191,643,022             
Additions 4,678,121        -                          10,466                      82,516                          4,771,104                 
Disposal -                   -                          -                           -                               -                           

Balance as at 31st March, 2021 124,015,586    63,432,126              2,964,645                 6,001,769                     196,414,126             
Net  Block
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 15,988,124      -                          -                           105,968                        16,094,092               
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 20,666,245      -                          10,466                      168,738                        20,845,450               



4.     NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Investment in optionally fully convertible debentures (OFCDs) (unquoted) 
(unquoted) (at cost)

155,505,320                    155,505,320                       

428,290,500                    428,290,500                       

40,239,100                      40,239,100                         

21,587,900                      21,587,900                         

629,215,000                    629,215,000                       

50,861,600                      50,861,600                         

1,325,699,420                 1,325,699,420                    

5.   DEFERRED TAX BALANCES Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Asset:
Deferred tax assets (net) 93,696                             686,735                               

93,696                              686,735                               
6.   INVENTORIES
Inventories consist of the following: Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

       Finished goods 64,740,492                      64,997,278                         
64,740,492                      64,997,278                         

7.  TRADE RECEIVABLES (UNSECURED)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

                       71,090,019 101,363,571                       
-                                   -                                      
-                                   -                                      

71,090,019                      101,363,571                       

8.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Cash on hand 860,710                           853,930                               
Balances with banks;
     -In Current accounts 5,601,197                        1,464,359                            
    - Term deposits with original maturity of less than three months 1,956,369                        174,206,369                       

8,418,276                        176,524,658                       Total

Considered doubtful
Less: Allowance  for bad and doubtful debts

Total

Total

Total

Considered good

Total (A+B)

402,391  (Previous year 554,820) fully paid up Optionally Fully Convertible Debenture of Rs 100/- 
each in  Skyline Radio Network Limited

215,879 (Previous year 215,879) fully paid up Optionally Fully Convertible Debenture of Rs 100/- 
each in B.A.G. Business Venture Private Limited

6,292,150 (Previous year 6,292,150) fully paid up Optionally Fully Convertible Debenture of Rs 100/- 
each in Oscar Software Private Limited

508,616 (Previous year 508,616) fully paid up Optionally Fully Convertible Debenture of Rs 100/- 
each in Approach Films and Television Limited

1,793,590 (Previous year 1,793,590) fully paid up Optionally Fully Convertible Debenture of Rs 100/- 
each in B.A.G Convergence Private Limited

4,282,905 (Previous year 4,282,905) fully paid up Optionally Fully Convertible Debenture of Rs 100/- 
each in B.A.G Live Entertainment Limited



9. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Loans and advances to related parties 144,599                           -                                      
Loans and advances to employees 2,279,688                        1,013,604                            
Loan and advance to Other 11,162,501                      4,920,378                            

13,586,788                      5,933,982                            

10.  OTHER CURRENT ASSETS Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Balances with government authorities 12,273,971                      23,114,416                         
Security Deposits 4,538,337                        4,538,337                            
Prepaid Expenses 681,363                           1,935,484                            

17,493,671                      29,588,237                         

Total

Total



11. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Authorised share capital
Equity Share Capital
30,000,000 (31st March, 2020: 30,000,000 ) equity shares of  Rs 10/- each 300,000,000                    300,000,000                       

Issued, subscribed and fully paid share capital
26,968,912 (31st March, 2020: 26,968,912 ) equity shares of  Rs 10/- each 269,689,120                    269,689,120                       

269,689,120                    269,689,120                       

Particulars
Number
of shares

held Amount

Number
of shares

held Amount
Equity share with Voting Rights
Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 26,968,912            269,689,120          26,968,912                       269,689,120                         
Add: Issue of Equity Shares during the year -                        -                         -                                    -                                       
Equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 26,968,912            269,689,120          26,968,912                       269,689,120                         

Name of Shareholders As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of Shares No. of Shares

B.A.G. Films & Media Limited 18,671,703                      18,671,703                         
Sameer Gehlaut 2,571,428                        2,571,428                            
High Growth Distributors Pvt Ltd. 2,571,428                        2,571,428                            

(iii) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

12. OTHER EQUITY Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
(a) Securities Premium Reserves 1,303,438,312                 1,303,438,312                    
(b) Capital Reserve 80,000,000                      80,000,000                         
(c')Retained earnings (666,848,378)                   (612,944,851)                      

716,589,934                    770,493,461                       

a)  Securities Premium Account : Security Premium is created to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

b)  Retained earning : Retained earnings represent the accumulated earnings net of losses if any made by the Company over the years.

Total

(iv) The  company has not allotted any bonus shares or bought back any shares during the current year or for a period of five years immediately 
preceding the balance sheet date.

(v) The Company’s objective for capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and support the growth 
of the Company. The Company determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic 
investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity and operating cash flows generated. The Company is not subject to any 
externally imposed capital requirements.

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of  Rs 2 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The 
dividend proposed , if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, 
except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the 
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(ii) Details of Equity shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Total

(i) The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below:



13.   OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Term Loans
      - From Bank 30,000,000                      50,000,000                         
Other borrowings (from entities other than Banks) 43,362,192                      43,362,192                         
Optionally fully convertible Debentures 157,005,000                    222,504,000                       

230,367,192                    315,866,192                       

-                                      
14. PROVISIONS Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Provision for Employee benefits
            - Gratuity 1,329,296                        1,644,880                            
           - Compensated absences 154,896                           222,376                               

1,484,192                        1,867,256                            

15.   TRADE PAYABLE Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Trade payables- micro and small enterprises -                                   -                                      
Trade payables 65,606,020                      61,115,483                         

65,606,020                      61,115,483                         
Notes:

16. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Secured
       Loans repayable on demand 180,445,020                    197,283,990                       

Unsecured Loans
       Loans from related parties -                                   53,053,788                         

180,445,020                    250,337,778                       

17. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Current maturities of long term debt 20,000,000                      15,000,000                         
Other payables
    Statutory Liabilities 845,237                           1,072,755                            
    Other Liabilities 28,948,605                      35,606,512                         
    Employee Cost 3,241,134                        4,590,774                            

53,034,976                      56,270,041                         

Total

Total

Total

Total

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises :
The balances above includes INR Nil (Previous Year Nil) due to Micro and Small Enterprises registered under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSME Act). No interest is paid / payable during the year to any Micro / Small Enterprise registered under 
the MSME. There were no delayed payments during the year to any Micro or Small Enterprise registered under the MSME Act. The above 
information has been determined to the extent such parties could be identified on the basis of the information available with the Management 
regarding the status of suppliers under the MSME Act.

Total



18.  REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Revenue from Operations 
Revenue from  - Sale of Services
  Sale of Services 206,145,959                    224,168,930                       

206,145,959                    224,168,930                       

19. OTHER INCOME Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Interest Income
  Interest from banks on:
   -Bank deposit 2,048,292                        7,486,728                            
 -  Other Interest 1,539,770                        416,709                               

  Miscellaneous Income 195,105                           83,783                                 
403,921                           -                                      

4,187,088                        7,987,220                            

Amount in 
20. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS (INCLUDING STOCK-IN-TRADE) AND WORK-IN-PROGRES
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Opening inventories
Finished Goods 64,997,278                      62,499,078                           

Closing inventories
Finished Goods (64,740,492)                     (64,997,278)                         

256,786                           (2,498,200)                          

21. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Salaries, incentives, allowances and Bonus 16,482,722                      27,943,604                         
Contribution to Provident and other funds 634,256                           1,068,203                            
Staff welfare expenses 157,144                           137,260                               

17,274,122                      29,149,067                         

22.  FINANCE COSTS Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Interest expense on
      Borrowing 27,086,253                      32,720,722                         
Other borrowing costs
    Bank Charges 243                                  5,745                                   
   Processing Fees -                                   5,000                                   

27,086,496                      32,731,467                         

23. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 5) 4,771,104                        6,230,754                            
4,771,104                        6,230,754                            

Other Non-Operating Income 

Total

Total

  Liabilities and excess provision written back

Total

Total

Total



24. OTHER EXPENSES Amount in 
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Operation and Other Expenses
Power and fuel 1,876,875                        2,355,765                            
Rent 9,927,361                        10,653,121                         
Repairs to machinery 300,157                           363,012                               
Insurance 5,028                               1,115,244                            
Rates and taxes 1,097,945                        3,319,946                            
Payment to auditors
    - As Auditor 125,000                           125,000                               
    - For Taxation Matters 50,000                             50,000                                 
Professional Charges Artist, Directors, Technicians 14,893,750                      25,437,992                         
Corporate Social Responsibilty Expenditure -                                   119,371                               
Royalty 110,378,916                    40,846,599                         
Uplinking Charges 7,050,000                        7,050,000                            
Carriage Fees 60,280,123                      92,504,567                         
Office Maintenance 2,734,200                        2,969,264                            
Miscellaneous Expenses 5,400,160                        63,791,591                         

214,119,515                    250,701,472                       



 
 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2021 
 
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 
The Company is running a 24 hours Entertainment channel in the name of “E24” . Modern, interactive, 
informative and passionate, the channel reports the glitz and glamour of Bollywood with honesty, zeal and 
commitment. Films, music, entertainment reviews, gossip, scoops and scandals- the channel features all such 
programmes in unique style and look. 
 
 
NOTE 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION, MEASUREMENT AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

2.1  Basis of Preparation and Measurement  

(a)   Basis of preparation  
These Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.  

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting 
policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets and 
liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and 
other criteria as set out in the Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of 
products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash 
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.  

Subsidiaries are entities where the group exercise control or hold more than one-half of its total share capital. 
The net assets and results of acquired businesses are included in the consolidated financial statements from 
their respective dates of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control. 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like 
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of 
consolidated financial statements are consistent with those of previous year. The consolidated financial 
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together 
the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group balances, 
intra-group transactions and the unrealised profits/losses, unless cost/revenue cannot be recovered.  

The excess of cost to the Group of its investment in subsidiaries, on the acquisition dates over and above the 
Group’s share of equity in the subsidiaries, is recognised as ‘Goodwill on Consolidation’ in the consolidated 
financial statements. The said Goodwill is not amortised, however, it is tested for impairment at each Balance 
Sheet date and the impairment loss, if any, is provided for. On the other hand, where the share of equity in 
subsidiaries as on the date of investment is in excess of cost of investments of the Group, it is recognised as 
‘Capital Reserve’ and shown under the head ‘Other Equity’ in the consolidated financial statements. 
 
Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the 
consolidated Balance Sheet separately within equity.  



 
 

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of:  

a) The amount of equity attributable to non-controlling interests at the date on which investment in a 
subsidiary is made; and  

b) The non-controlling interests share of movements in equity since the date parent subsidiary 
relationship came into existence.  

The profit and other comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests of subsidiaries are shown 
separately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.  

The Consolidated financial statements are presented in INR, the functional currency of the Group. Items 
included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are recorded using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Group operates (the ‘functional currency’).  

Transactions and balances with values below the rounding off norm adopted by the Group have been reflected 
as “0” in the relevant notes in these consolidated financial statements.  

The Consolidated Financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2021 were approved for 
issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 29th June, 2021. 

 
(b) Basis of measurement  

These Consolidated Financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise 
indicated. 

 
2.2 Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements 
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement 
principles of Ind AS requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the date of the consolidated financial 
statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses for the periods presented. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected. 
Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of consolidated financial statements, which may cause a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are in 
respect of useful lives of property, plant and equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets, and fair value 
measurements of financial instruments, these are discussed below. Key sources of estimation of uncertainty in 
respect of revenue recognition, employee benefits and provisions and contingent liabilities have been 
discussed in their respective policies. 

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
The Group reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This 
reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods. 

Valuation of deferred tax assets 
The Group reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period.  

 
 
 



 
 

Fair value measurement of financial instruments 
When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be 
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques 
including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets 
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. 
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in 
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.  

 
Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 : 
The Group has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19  on the 
carrying amounts of receivables, unbilled revenues, goodwill and intangible assets. In developing the 
assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this 
pandemic, the Group, as at the date of approval of these financial statements, has used internal and external 
sources of information including credit reports and related information, economic forecasts and consensus 
estimates from market sources on the expected future performance of the Group. The Group has performed 
sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and, based on the current estimates, expects the carrying amount 
of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the Group’s financial statements may differ from 
that estimated as at the date of approval of these Consolidated financial statements and the Group will 
continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic condition. 

 
2.3 Recent Accounting Developments 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards. There 
is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2021. 

 
MCA issued notifications dated 24th March, 2021 to amend Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 to enhance 
the disclosures required to be made by the Group in its financial statement. These amendments are applicable 
to the Group for the financial year starting 1st April, 2021. 
2.4 Significant Accounting Policies 
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the 
years except where newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted. 

(a) Current versus non-current classification  
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non- current 
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:  

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle  
- Held primarily for purpose of trading  
- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
 - cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period  
All other assets are classified as non-current.  

        A liability is current when:  
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle  
- It is held primarily for purpose of trading  



 
 

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or  
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after 

the reporting period  

All other liabilities are classified as non current. 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are classified as non- current assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash 
and cash equivalents. the Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 
 

(b) Leases 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

Company as a lessee  
The Company’s lease asset classes primarily comprise of lease for land and building. The Company assesses 
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 
To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses 
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the 
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to 
direct the use of the asset. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all 
leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. For these short-term and low value leases, 
the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of 
the lease. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets 
representing the right to use the underlying assets as below: 

i) Right-of-use assets  
The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the 
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of 
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and 
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right of- use 
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful 
lives of the underlying assets (i.e. 30 and 60 years) 
 
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the 
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The 
right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section ‘Impairment 
of nonfinancial assets’. 
 

ii) Lease Liabilities 
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present 
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments 
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that 
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease 
payments also include the exercise price of purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the 



 
 

Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising 
the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised 
as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition 
that triggers the payment occurs. 

 
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the 
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After 
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and 
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if 
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future 
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change 
in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 

 
The Group’s lease liabilities are included in other current and non-current financial liabilities. 
 

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases  
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase 
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to 
be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as 
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

 
“Lease liability” and “Right of Use” asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease 
payments have been classified as financing cash flows 

 
  

Group as a lessor 
Leases for which the Group is a lessor is classified as finance or operating lease. Leases in which the Group 
does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as 
operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial 
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of 
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents 
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. 

 
(c) Property, plant and equipment 
Property, Plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if 
any. The cost comprises of purchase price, taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses directly 
attributable and related to acquisition and installation of the concerned assets and are further adjusted by the 
amount of input tax credit availed wherever applicable. 

Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long term 
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are 
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful 
lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the 
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and 
maintenance costs are recognised in Consolidated Statement of profit or loss as incurred. The present value 



 
 

of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective 
asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. 

Subsequent costs are included in asset’s carrying amount or recognised as separate assets, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with the item will flow to the Company and 
the cost of item can be measured reliably. 

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognized upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising 
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised. 

Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under 
development as at the balance sheet date. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed 
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on pro-rata basis on Written down value 
method using the useful lives of the assets estimated by management. 

(d) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets: 
Assessment Assessment for impairment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any 
indication that a non-financial asset may be impaired. Indefinite life intangible assets are subject to a review 
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that it is necessary. For the 
purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from 
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets is 
considered as a cash generating unit. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition 
date, allocated to each of the Company’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the 
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquire are assigned to 
those units. 
If any indication of impairment exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the individual asset/cash 
generating unit is made. Asset/cash generating unit whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount 
are written down to the recoverable amount by recognising the impairment loss as an expense in the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying 
amount of any goodwill (if any) allocated to the cash generating unit and then to the other assets of the unit, 
pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or 
cash generating unit’s fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of 
estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset or cash generating unit and 
from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether 
there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may no 
longer exist or may have decreased. Basis the assessment a reversal of an impairment loss for an asset other 
than goodwill is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss account. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

(e) Financial instruments 
Financial Assets:  
Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.  

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value. In case of Financial assets which are 
recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost is attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset.  

Financial assets are subsequently classified and measured at  
- amortised cost  
- fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)  
- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).  
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except during the period the Company 
changes its business model for managing financial assets. 

 
Trade Receivables and Loans:  
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at amortised 
cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the rate that 
discounts estimated future cash income through the expected life of financial instrument. 

 
Debt Instruments:  
Debt instruments are initially measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income 
(‘FVOCI’) or fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) till derecognition on the basis of (i) the Company’s 
business model for managing the financial assets and (ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the 
financial asset. 

 
i. Measured at amortised cost:  

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order 
to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the ‘EIR’ method less impairment, if any. The amortisation of EIR and 
loss arising from impairment, if any is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

ii. Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):  
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling 
financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, 
are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements 
are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income measured using the EIR 
method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 
On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to 
‘other income’ in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 
iii. Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):  

A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such financial 
assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend 
income if any, recognised as ‘other income’ in the Cosnsolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 
 



 
 

      Equity Instruments:  
 All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair value, 
the Group may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL.  

The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity 
instrument is recognised as ‘other income’ in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss unless the 
Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an 
equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognised in OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are not 
subsequently reclassified to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the 
investments in equity instruments are recognised as ‘other income’ in the Consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

 
Derivative Financial Instruments:  
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and commodity risks. 
Derivatives are measured at fair value. The treatment of changes in the value of derivative depends on their 
use as explained below: 

 
Cash flow hedges:  
Derivatives are held to hedge the uncertainty in timing or amount of future forecast cash flows. Such 
derivatives are classified as being part of cash flow hedge relationships. For an effective hedge, gains and 
losses from changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised in other comprehensive income. Any 
ineffective elements of the hedge are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.  
If the hedged cash flow relates to a non-financial asset, the amount accumulated in equity is subsequently 
included within the carrying value of that asset. For other cash flow hedges, amounts accumulated in other 
comprehensive income are taken to the statement of profit and loss at the same time as the related cash 
flow. 
When a derivative no longer qualifies for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss remains in equity 
until the related cash flow occurs. When the cash flow takes place, the cumulative gain or loss is taken to the 
statement of profit and loss. If the hedged cash flow is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or 
loss is taken to the statement of profit and loss immediately. 

 
Derivatives for which hedge accounting is not applied  
Derivative financial instruments for which hedge accounting is not applied are initially recognised at fair 
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered and are subsequently measured at FVTPL.  

Derecognition  
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset. 

 
Impairment of Financial Asset  
The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of loss allowance 
on the following:  

i. Trade receivables  
ii. Financial assets measured at amortised cost (other than trade receivables)  
iii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).  

 



 
 

In case of trade receivables, the Group follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime 
ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance.  

In case of other assets (listed as ii and iii above), the Group determines if there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk of the financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not 
increased significantly, an amount equal to 12-month ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance. 
However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and 
recognised as loss allowance. 

 
Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance 
based on 12-month ECL. 

 
ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the 
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the 
original effective interest rate. 
 
Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life 
of a financial asset. 12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result from default events that are 
possible within 12 months from the reporting date. 

 
ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts determined by 
a range of outcomes, taking into account the time value of money and other reasonable information 
available as a result of past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. 

 
As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to measure lifetime ECL on its portfolio of trade 
receivables. The provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected 
life of trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At each reporting date, the 
historically observed default rates and changes in the forward-looking estimates are updated. 

 
ECL allowance recognised (or reversed) during the period is recognised as income/expense in the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss under the head ‘Other expenses’. 

 
Write-off  
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable 
expectations of recovering the financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. 

 
Financial Liabilities:  
Initial recognition and measurement  
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition, they 
are classified as fair value through profit and loss. In case of trade payables, they are initially recognised at 
fair value and subsequently, these liabilities are held at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate 
method. 

 
 
 
 



 
 

Subsequent measurement  
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilities 
carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value 
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 
Derecognition  
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expires. The difference between the carrying value of the financial liability and the consideration paid is 
recognised in Consolidated Statement of profit and loss. 

 
(f) Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures:  
Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures are carried at cost less accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed 
and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, 
associates and joint venture, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 
(g) Inventories:  
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is computed on a weighted average 
basis. Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress include all costs of purchases, conversion costs and other 
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The net realisable value is 
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 
 
(h) Cash and Cash Equivalents:  
Cash and cash equivalents are cash, balances with bank and short-term (three months or less from the date of 
placement), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 
(i) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities:  
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the 
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date.  

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its present value using 
a current pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the obligation. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as a finance cost.  

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence 
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is 
either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate 
of the amount cannot be made. 

 
 
 



 
 

(j) Revenue Recognition 
Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ 
The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs (MCA) notified Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” related to revenue recognition 
which replaces all existing revenue recognition standards and provide a single, comprehensive model for all 
contracts with customers. The revised standard contains principles to determine the measurement of revenue 
and timing of when it is recognised. 
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and 
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable All revenues are accounted on accrual basis except to the extent stated otherwise. 
 Revenue generated from the commissioned television programs and Internet series produced for 

broadcasters is recognized over the period of time over the contract period.  
 Rent income is recognised on accrual basis as per the agreed terms on straight line basis. 
 Sale of Rights are recognised in accordance with the terms of agreements with customers. 
 Revenue from other services is recognised as and when such services are completed / performed. 
 Income from infrastructure support, building rent and royalty income is recognised based on the terms 

of the underlying agreement. 
 Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective 

interest rate (EIR) applicable. 

 Revenue from subsidiaries is recognised based on transaction price which is at arm’s length. 
 
The transaction price, being the amount to which the Group expects to be entitled and has rights to under the 
contract is allocated to the identified performance obligations. The transaction price will also include an 
estimate of any variable consideration where the Group’s performance may result in additional revenues 
based on the achievement of agreed targets. 

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods 
or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the group does 
not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.  

Revenue excludes any taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government. 

 
(k) Expenditure:  
Expenses are accounted on accrual basis. 

 
(l) Employee benefits 
Defined contribution plans  
Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as employees’ state insurance, labour welfare fund, 
superannuation scheme, employee pension scheme etc. are charged as an expense based on the amount of 
contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees. Group’s provident 
fund contribution, in respect of certain employees, is made to a Government administered fund and charged 
as an expense to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The above benefits are classified as Defined 
Contribution Schemes as the Group has no further defined obligations beyond the monthly contributions. 
 
 



 
 

Defined benefit plans  
In respect of certain employees, provident fund contributions are made to a trust administered by the Group. 
The interest rate payable to the members of the trust shall not be lower than the statutory rate of interest 
declared by the Central Government under the Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 
1952 and shortfall, if any, shall be made good by the Company. The liability in respect of the shortfall of 
interest earnings of the Fund is determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation. The Company also provides 
for retirement/post-retirement benefits in the form of gratuity, pensions (in respect of certain employees), 
compensated absences (in respect of certain employees) and medical benefits (in respect of certain employees) 
including to the employees of group companies.  

For defined benefit plans, the amount recognised as ‘Employee benefit expenses’ in the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss is the cost of accruing employee benefits promised to employees over the year 
and the costs of individual events such as past/future service benefit changes and settlements (such events are 
recognised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss). The amount of net interest expense 
calculated by applying the liability discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset is charged or 
credited to ‘Finance costs’ in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Any differences between the 
expected interest income on plan assets and the return actually achieved, and any changes in the liabilities 
over the year due to changes in actuarial assumptions or experience adjustments within the plans, are 
recognised immediately in ‘Other comprehensive income’ and subsequently not reclassified to the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.  

The defined benefit plan surplus or deficit on the Balance Sheet date comprises fair value of plan assets less the 
present value of the defined benefit liabilities using a discount rate by reference to market yields on 
Government bonds at the end of the reporting period.  

All defined benefit plans obligations are determined based on valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date, made 
by independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The classification of the Group’s net obligation 
into current and non-current is as per the actuarial valuation report. 

 
Termination benefits  
Termination benefits, in the nature of voluntary retirement benefits or termination benefits arising from 
restructuring, are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The Group recognises 
termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:  

(a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; or  

 (b) when the Group recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of Ind AS 37: Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and involves the payment of termination benefits.  

Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to their present 
value. 

 
Share-Based Payments  
Employees of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments in consideration of the 
services rendered. Under the equity settled share based payment, the fair value on the grant date of the awards 
given to employees is recognised as ‘employee benefit expenses’ with a corresponding increase in equity over 
the vesting period. The fair value of the options at the grant date is calculated by an independent valuer basis 
Black Scholes model. At the end of each reporting period, apart from the non-market vesting condition, the 



 
 

expense is reviewed and adjusted to reflect changes to the level of options expected to vest. When the options 
are exercised, the Group issues fresh equity shares.  

For cash-settled share-based payments, the fair value of the amount payable to employees is recognised as 
‘employee benefit expenses’ with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period of non-market vesting 
conditions getting fulfilled. The liability is remeasured at each reporting period up to, and including the 
settlement date, with changes in fair value recognised in employee benefits expenses. 
 
(m) Income Taxes:  
Income tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to a business combination or to an item which is 
recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.  

Current tax is the expected tax payable/ receivable on the taxable income/ loss for the year using applicable 
tax rates for the relevant period, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years. Interest expenses 
and penalties, if any, related to income tax are included in finance cost and other expenses respectively. 
Interest Income, if any, related to Income tax is included in Other Income.  

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.  

A deferred tax liability is recognised based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying 
amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end of the reporting 
period. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will 
be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.  

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax 
assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes 
levied by the same taxation authority.  

(n) Foreign Currencies:  
1. Functional and presentation currency 
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The Group’s financial statements are 
presented in Indian rupee (INR) which is also the Group’s functional and presentation currency. 
2. Transactions and balances 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate 
prevailing at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement 
of such transaction and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies at year end exchange rate are generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair 
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is 
determined. 
 
 



 
 

3. Exchange differences 
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized as income or 
expense in the period in which they arise with the exception of exchange differences on gain or loss arising 
on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value which is treated in line with the recognition of 
the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair 
value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, 
respectively). 

 
(o) Earnings Per Share:  
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods 
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that 
have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.  

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the 
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

 
(p) Business Combination:  
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition accounting method as at the date of the 
acquisition, which is the date at which control is transferred to the Group. 
 
The consideration transferred in the acquisition and the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are 
recognised at fair values on their acquisition date. Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of 
the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and 
any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The Group 
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at 
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets. 

 
Consideration transferred does not include amounts related to settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such 
amounts are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.  

Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, other than those incurred in relation to the issue of debt or equity 
securities. Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent 
changes in the fair value of contingent consideration are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

 
(q) Borrowings and Borrowing costs 
Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds and 
charged to Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss on the basis of effective interest rate (EIR) method. 
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing 
cost. 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of 
the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which they occur. 

 
 



 
 

 
(r) Dividend Distributions 
The Group recognizes a liability to make the payment of dividend to owners of equity, when the distribution is 
authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group. As per the corporate laws in India, a 
distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised 
directly in equity. 

 
(s)  Segment reporting 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision maker. The Board of directors monitors the operating results of all product segments 
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. 
Segment performance is evaluated based on profit and loss and is measured consistently with profit and loss 
in the financial statements. 

 
The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. Further: 

1. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to the 
segment including inter - segment revenue. 

2. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining 
the segment result. Expenses which relate to the Group as a whole and not allocable to segments 
are included under unallocable expenditure. 

3. Income which relates to the Group as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in 
unallocable income. 

4. Segment results includes margins on intersegment sales which are reduced in arriving at the profit 
before tax of the Group. 

5. Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments. 
Unallocable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Group as 
a whole and not allocable to any segment. 

6. Segment revenue resulting from transactions with other business segments is accounted on the 
basis of transfer price agreed between the segments. Such transfer prices are either determined to 
yield a desired margin or agreed on a negotiated business. 
 

(t) Exceptional Items 
Exceptional items are transactions which due to their size or incidence are separately disclosed to enable a full 
understanding of the Group’s financial performance. Items which may be considered exceptional are 
significant restructuring charges, gains or losses on disposal of investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint 
venture and impairment losses/ write down in value of investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint 
venture and significant disposal of fixed assets etc. 

 
(u) Fair value measurement 
The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

(i) In the principal market for asset or liability, or 

(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 



 
 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or 
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or 
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use 
of unobservable inputs. 
 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

Level 1- Quoted(unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or    indirectly observable 

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable 
 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization ( 
based on the lowest level input that is significant to fair value measurement as a whole ) at the end of each 
reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis 
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above. 

 
(v) Standards issued but not effective 
There are no standards that are issued but not yet effective on March 31, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

25. Employee Benefits 
Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS - 19 “Employee Benefits” (notified under the section 133 of the Companies 
Act 2013 (the Act) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule 2015 (as amended from time 
to time) and other relevant provision of the Act) are given below : 
Post-employment Obligation 
Gratuity 
The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The 
employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of 
gratuity payable on retirement / termination is the employee’s last drawn basic salary per month 
computed proportionately for 15 day’s salary multiplied with the number of years of service. The gratuity 
plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to recognised funds in India. The Company 
does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of 
time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments. As the estimated payout in next 12 months, 
from the balance sheet date, for the defined benefit obligation is less that the fair value of plan assets, 
hence, the net liability has been considered as non-current. 
Defined Contribution Plans 
The Company has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund, and 
employee’s state insurance scheme for employees as per regulations. The contributions are made to 
registered funds administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount 
contributed and it has no further contractual or any constructive obligation. 

        Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan recognised as expense for the year is as under:  

     Defined Benefit Plans: 
The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit  Credit 
method, which  recognises each year of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit 
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation for leave 
encashment is recognised using the Project Unit Credit Method.  
a. Change in present value of obligation 

                                                                             Mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm                   (Amount in ) 
Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment 

March31,2021 March31,2020 March31,2021 March31,2020 
Present value of obligation as  at the 
beginning of the period                               

1,644,880 1,356,898 222,376 224,720 

Current Service Cost 181,741 306,667 18,536 37,146 
Interest Cost 111,194 103,938 15,033 17,214 
Expected Return on Plan Assets -- -- -- -- 
Benefits paid (451,096) -- -- -- 
Actuarial (gain)/loss (157,423) (122,623) (101,049) (56,704) 
Past Service Cost -- -- -- -- 
Curtailment and settlement 
Cost/(credit) 

-- -- -- -- 

Present value of obligation as  at the 
end of the period                              

1,329,296 1,644,880 154,896 222,376 

           Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund:      Rs. 401,328 
                                                                              (Previous Year Rs. 898,894 ) 
            Employer’s Contribution to ESI :                         Rs. 64,255 
                                                                                  (Previous Year Rs. 101,950 ) 

  



 
 

                                               
b.  Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss account                                                (Amount in )                      

Particulars 
 

Gratuity Leave Encashment 
March31,2021 March31,2020 March31,2021 March31,2020 

Current service cost                   181,741 306,667 18,536 37,146 
Past service cost                         -- -- -- -- 
Interest cost                     111,194 103,938 15,033 17,214 
Expected return on plan assets -- -- -- -- 
Curtailment cost / (Credit) -- -- -- -- 
Settlement cost / (credit) -- -- -- -- 
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in 
the period 

(157,423) (122,623) (101,049) (56,704) 

Expenses recognized in the statement 
of profit & losses 

135,512 287,982 (67,480) (2,344) 

 
c. Actuarial gain/loss recognized                                                                                                             (Amount in )                                                                                  

Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment 
March31,2021 March31,2020 March31,2021 March31,2020 

Actuarial gain/(loss) for the period – 
obligation 

157,423 122,623 101,049   56,704 

Actuarial gain/(loss) for the period - plan 
assets 

-- -- -- -- 

Total (gain)/loss for the period (157,423) (122,623) (101,049) (56,704) 
Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the 
period 

(157,423) (122,623) (101,049) (56,704) 

Unrecognized actuarial (gains) losses at 
the end of period 

-- -- -- -- 

 
 

d. The amounts to be recognized in balance sheet and related analysis                                     (Amount in ) 
Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment 

March31,2021 March31,2020 March31,2021 March31,2020 
Present value of obligation as at the end 
of the period   

1,329,296 1,644,880 154,896 222,376 

Fair value of plan assets as at the end 
of the period                         

-- -- -- -- 

Funded status / Difference                      (1,329,296) (1,644,880) (154,896) (222,376) 
Excess of actual over estimated -- -- -- -- 
Unrecognized actuarial (gains)/losses -- -- -- -- 
Net asset/(liability) recognized in 
balance sheet 

(1,329,296) (1,644,880) (154,896) (222,376) 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

e. Actuarial Assumptions 
i)  Economic Assumptions  
The principal assumptions are the discount rate & salary growth rate. The discount rate is generally based 
upon the market yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches 
that of the liabilities & the salary growth rate takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other 
relevant factors on long term basis. Valuation assumptions are as follows which have been agreed by the 
company: 
          

                                                      (Amount in ) 
Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment 

March31,2021 March31,2020 March31,2021 March31,2020 
Discount Rate (%) 6.76 6.76 6.76 6.76 
Expected Rate of increase in Compensation 
Levels (%) 

5.50 5.50 5.50 5.50 

Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets -- -- -- -- 
Expected Average remaining working lives 
of employees (years) 

23.33 23.86 23.33 23.86 

ii) Demographic Assumption  
                                                   (Amount in ) 

Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment 
March31,2021 March31,2020 March31,2021 March31,2019 

  i)  Retirement Age  (Years) 60 60 60 60 
 ii)  Mortality Table IALM(2006-08) IALM(2006-08) IALM(2006-08) IALM(2006-08) 
iii)  Ages     
       Up to 30 Years         3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 
       From 31 to 44 years         2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 
       Above 44 years        1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 
 
Short term employee benefits 
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the services are classified as short-
term employees benefits. Benefits such as salaries , wages and bonus, etc., are recognized in the statement of 
Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service. 
   
Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 
Termination benefits 
Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. 
 
      
 
 
 
 



 
 

Sensitivity Analysis of the defined benefit obligation. 
 
 Gratuity Leave 

Encashment 
a) Impact of the change in discount rate 
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 1,329,296 154,896 
Impact due to increase of  0.50% (105,582) (12,686) 
Impact due to decrease of  0.50 % 117,467 13,731 
b) Impact of the change in salary increase 
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 1,329,296 154,896 
Impact due to increase of  0.50% 118,354 13,953 
Impact due to decrease of  0.50 % (107,264) (12,655) 
 
 

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions 
constant. In practice this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. 
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the 
same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit 
method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability 
recognised in the Balance sheet. 

 
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analyses did not change compared    
to previous period. 

Notes: 
 

a) The current service cost recognised as an expense is included in Note 21 ‘Employee benefits expense’ as 
gratuity. The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive 
income. 

 
b) The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, 

seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. 
The above information is certified by the Actuary. 

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, 
expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on 
reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, 
while holding all other assumptions constant. 

c) The obligation for leave benefits (non funded) is also recognised using the Projected Unit Credit Method 
and accordingly the long term paid absences have been valued. The leave encashment expense is included 
in Note 21 ‘Employee benefits expense’. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

26.  Related party transactions 
The related parties as per the terms of Ind AS-24,”Related Party Disclosures”, ( under the section 133 of the 
Companies Act 2013 (the Act) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (as amended 
from time to time), as disclosed below:- 
 
Name of related parties and description of relationship 
 
Name Relationship 

B.A.G. Films and  Media Limited Holding Company 

E24 Entertainment Limited Foreign Subsidiary 
Anuradha Prasad Shukla Key Managerial Personnel 

ARVR Communications Pvt. Ltd.  Enterprises over which KMP are able to exercise significant 
influence 

News24 Broadcast India Limited Enterprises over which KMP/Director are able to exercise 
significant influence 

Skyline Radio Network Limited 
 

Enterprises over which KMP/Director are able to exercise 
significant influence 

B.A.G Live Entertainment Limited Enterprises over which KMP are able to exercise significant 
influence 

Skyline Tele Media Services Limited Enterprises over which KMP are able to exercise significant 
influence 

 
 
 Details of Transactions during the year and balances at the year end             (Amount in ) 

Particulars Holding Company Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMP) 

Enterprises over which 
KMP are able to exercise 

significant influence 
  For Year Ended  

March 31, 
For Year Ended 

March 31, 
For Year Ended  

March 31, 
  2021 2020 2021 2019 2021 2020 

Lease rental on Equipments 5,673,365 6,189,120 -- --   

Income from Ad Sale -- -- -- -- 85,220,000 58,476,330 

Income From commisioned 
Serial/Programmes 

-- -- -- -- -- -- 

Office Rent 4,254,000 4,464,000 -- -- -- -- 

Expenses Reimbursed 6,552,314 7,456,000 -- -- 7,050,000 7,050,000 

Advertisement Expenses -- -- -- -- 85,231,000 20,675,680 

Carriage Fees 50,344,639 46,048,079 -- -- -- -- 

  
Note 
1. The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length 

transactions. 



 
 

2. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the 
year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to 
amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining 
the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. 

3. All the liabilities for post retirement benefits being ‘Gratuity’ are provided on actuarial basis for the 
Company as a whole, accordingly the amount pertaining to Key management personnel are not included 
above. 

 
27.  EARNING PER SHARE                           (Amount in ) 

Particulars For the year ended 
 2020-21 2019-20 
Profit for the year (53,903,527) (85,465,828) 
Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for 
calculating Basic EPS 

26,968,912 26,968,912 

Basic Earnings per share (2.00) (3.17) 
Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for 
calculating Diluted EPS 

46,729,601 53,555,531 

Diluted Earnings per share (2.00) (3.17) 
Face Value per equity share 10 10 

 
 

 
28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
a) Fair Value Measurements 

Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the 
most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability 
reflects its non-performance risk. The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial 
recognition is normally the transaction price – i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. 

 
b) Categories of financial instruments and fair value thereof               (Amount in ) 

 March 31,2021 March 31,2020 
Carrying amount Fair Value Carrying amount Fair Value 

a)  Financial assets 
i) Measured at amortised cost 
Trade receivables 71,090,019 71,090,019 101,363,571 101,363,571 
Cash and cash equivalents 8,418,276 8,418,276 176,524,658 176,524,658 
Other financial assets 13,586,788 13,586,788 5,933,982 5,933,982 
Investments 1,325,699,420 1,325,699,420 1,325,699,420 1,325,699,420 
     
b) Financial liabilities 
i) Measured at amortised cost 
Trade payables 65,606,020 65,606,020 61,115,483 61,115,483 
Other financial liabilities 410,812,212 410,812,212 566,203,970 566,203,970 
 



 
 

* Includes current maturities of long term borrowings. 
  The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be 

exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. 
   Financial instruments measured at amortised cost. 

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial    
statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values since the Company does not anticipate that 
the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or 
settled. 
The carrying value of current trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, current loans, trade payables    
and other financial assets and liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their short 
term nature. 
 

c) Financial Risk Management objectives and policies 
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. 
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s 
principal financial assets include investments, loans, trade and other receivables and cash and cash 
equivalents that derive directly from its operations. 
The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management 
oversees the management of these risks. 
 

i. Credit risk management 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty fails to meet its 
contractual obligations and arises principally from the Company’s receivables, deposits given, loans 
given, investments made and balances at bank.  
The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from investments made, loans 
given and trade receivables. 
In case of trade receivables, the Company does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to 
cover its credit risks. Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approvals, 
establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the 
Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the 
Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. 
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the average credit period is 90 days. The Company’s 
exposure to customers is diversified and no customer contributes to more than 10% of outstanding trade 
receivables and unbilled revenue. 
The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure: 

 March 31,2021 March 31,2020 
Trade Receivable (Unsecured) 
- Over six months - - 
-Less than six months 71,090,019 101,363,571 
Total 71,090,019 101,363,571 

Trade receivable consists of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and    
geographical areas. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of the accounts  
receivable. 



 
 

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks 
and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by credit-rating agencies. The credit risk on 
optionally fully convertible debentures and deposit is limited because the couter parties are generally banks 
and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by credit rating agencies. 
 

ii. Liquidity risk management 
The responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of directors, which has an appropriate 
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short-, medium- and long 
term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by 
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities by regularly monitoring forecast and actual cash flows. 
Maturities of financial liabilities 
The tables below analyze the company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on their 
contractual maturities.                       (Amount in ) 

 Due in 
1st year 

Due in 
2 to 5th year 

Due after 5 
years 

Total 

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities 
March 31, 2021 
Trade payables and other financial 
liabilities 

65,606,020 -- -- 65,606,020 

Borrowings 200,445,020 230,367,192 -- 430,812,212 
 

 Due in 
1st year 

Due in 
2 to 5th year 

Due after 5 
years 

Total 

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities 
March 31, 2020 
Trade payables and other financial 
liabilities 

61,115,483 -- -- 61,115,483 

Borrowings 212,283,990 315,866,192 -- 528,150,182 
 
 

iii. Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and 
other price risk such as equity price risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control 
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. 

a. Foreign currency risk exposure: 
The Company does not have any exposure to foreign currency risk as at March 31, 2020 (Previous 
year Nil). 
 

b. Interest rate risk 
The Company does not have any borrowings and is thus not exposed to interest rate risk as at 
March 31, 2020 (Previous year Nil). 
 

c. Other price risk 
The Company is exposed to equity price risks arising from equity investments. The Company’s 
equity investments are held for strategic rather than trading purposes. 



 
 

 
d. Equity price sensitivity analysis 

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to equity price risks at 
the end of the reporting period. 

 
 
 

29. CAPTAL MANAGEMENT 
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to 
- Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for 
   shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and 
- Maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor,     
creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. 

 
The company considers the following components of its balance sheet to be managed capital: 
Total equity as shown in the balance sheet including reserves, retained earnings and share capital. In order 
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to 
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. 

 
30. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified to be comparable with currents year’s 

classification/disclosures. 
 

 
For Kumar Khare & Co.           For and on the behalf of Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 006740C 

 
 
 
 
 

Alok Khare                  Anuradha Prasad Shukla                    Anil Kapoor           
Partner                                                                       (Director)                                         (Whole Time Director) 
Membership No. 075236        DIN :  00010716                          DIN  : 05113976 
UDIN: 
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Place: Noida                                                          Chief Financial Officer                          Company Secretary 
Date: June 29, 2021 
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